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FINANCIAL
GHLIGHTS wsws

TURNOVER (HK$'M) DIVIDEND PER SHARE (HK$)
BEEBMEER) . BRBE(ER)
“ s o 15
13 ; 13
7 12 s " 12
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (HK$'M) * Restated & %
AADFEEARERACESEER)
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY PER SHARE (HK$)
AADBEASREEZEE(EBR)
5.20 5.09
v v
15 14

-

3 12




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (HK$'M)

FEEHBARR (B¥%EET)

2015

2014 2013 2012
(restated) (restated)
(E5) (E5)

Turnover

Profit before tax

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

PER SHARE (HK$)
DEpist (B)

B 3,871
MRELATEF 63
TEEEA 40
RATEE AEEBT 40

4,057 3,563 3,359
101 95 242
74 68 186

75 68 168

Earnings
Dividend
Dividend payout ratio

Net assets attributable to owners of the Company
Market price

ZF| 0.19
KRE 0.049
RE = 26%
RAREEAEIEFEE 5.20
g 2.74

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (HK$'M)

SeUBMRRER (B¥EET)

0.35 0.32 0.80
0.092 0.080 0.152
26% 25% 19%
5.09 4.70 4.46
2.99 4.20 6.00

No. of shares ("M Shares)
Shareholders' funds
Borrowings

Cash and cash equivalents

Net gearing ratio
Market capitalization

BB (5ER) 210
BRRES 1,095
EE 924
ReRRESZEEY 130
FEELE 58%
i 576

210 210 210
1,071 989 938
857 631 440
141 206 103
67% 43% 36%
629 883 1,262
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LETTER L
1O SHAREHOLDERS snxsas

All the challenges faced by the jewellery retail industry in Hong Kong BEERTERAMKESETEMNLFAERENE

and Mainland China in previous years have continued and become EREEAVREFE(AFEDRABEREESE
even more pronounced during the current financial year (the “Year”) ARBEE BYFAEECEEBREGAELEIR

leading to a disappointing decline in the Group’s year-on-year turnover ~ EFRB T c A > RAMRA@MERRRE B
and profit attributable to shareholders. Nevertheless, | am pleased to EMEARM T EARNSMNEREEHE

report that other key financial performance indicators such as cash HOEENUBEE MR KFE FEXER
level, inventory level and inventory turnover days have continued to GFERAERAY HEESINEMFAEBLESR
improve whereas net gearing ratio maintains at a comparable level ERHFE—EROKNKTE M REBMHEE R
since the implementation of a more effective and efficient business TETFEREHESEAVEFTFNEILLKE 2
management system two years ago. Moreover, we have achieved RASEEZFRASTHEZHEN c SLEEMNE
a single-digit percentage drop in our operating costs against that of RYURPAEENEACHELRN A RIEE o

last financial year, which reveals that our cost control mechanisms
have been effective. All these positive results support that the
transformation of the Group has been in the right direction.

Despite the extremely volatile retail market situation in Hong Kong, BESBTETERBRATRE BRERHAAEAA
| remain positive in the long term. The current challenges are in fact MREHEBEE - EANREBERAEBEEMN

opportunities for the Group to revamp and optimize its sales network BLEEEENHEERBREERBMEE X
and business strategies in Hong Kong. One of the tactics that we have HF—EAXBERXMEL—BAHRFECHBE

been implementing since the previous financial year is to downsize EBREITEMEEBNIEHEE  AKHERS
our shops in prime commercial districts, or relocate them to local T EEE > ARA R HIGEERRSIEHA
residential areas so as to enhance our presence in the local market BESEMFE RAFER RFACEEAR
and so achieve a more balanced network portfolio. During the Year, By EALFEEFESREAMAP LI EHLE

for example, we have opened three new stores, one in Olympian City, RTY-BHEH BMEAERREFTIEEAN
Mongkok, one in Plaza Hollywood, Diamond Hill and the other one in [ | XBERIEH -

Temple Mall North, Wong Tai Sin. More relocations and openings of

shops are expected in years to come.
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Notwithstanding the challenging business environment in Hong Kong,
we are elated by the growth achieved by our Mainland China business
during the Year, namely the eye-catching expansion of our franchised
store network and the rapid growth of our e-business. We opened 49
franchised points of sale during the Year and expect to expand at an
even faster rate in the next few years. On the e-business side, the
business has been growing by joining mature e-business platforms in
Mainland China such as T-Mall, JD.com and VIP.com. This momentum
in Mainland China will continue by the further expansion of our sales
network and the refining of our product offerings.

Overall speaking, the Group is facing a challenging business
environment but at the same time grabbing business opportunities
as they present themselves. Hence we remain positive and hold an
optimistic long-term view about the future of the Group. We will keep
investing in building the TSL brand by being innovative in delivering
marketing messages to our customers. As a responsible corporate
citizen, we will continue to support UNICEF through a 3-year charity
campaign, “Your Little Their Mickle”, which was launched during the
Year. We will also keep streamlining our organization structure in
order to uplift our work efficiency and effectiveness and to improve
our financial performance in order to prepare for future business
expansion in existing or untapped markets and to ultimately maximize
our shareholders’ value.

BEETBNERREZTRUE  XFERTER
HMWEBRERANCASE  SHRMBEHKN
AEPRANEFHEEBHPREER - HMRA
FENMARTAORMEBE  LHEARRKRBER
LERNEERER TEFHEEKHE - N
AHBEANEFEETE Wl KM [R2RE
HIRIMERE ] SEBTHER BEE-TE
REMWBEEAESRIERMNERES  HM
BEEOETEAMNEREELEET X -

MEMS AKECEYE - ERAREMENER
RE EBRETEEZEE Bl RMHAE
ENASREEAMALBENEE - KMAKERAR
B Y RABAEERHMSEENENTSLA
BoERBENLEAR  RMRAFEEBH
RAB=ZFNIBEDPRE IBRIBHEEZ I
HEBRRERES - HMTBEEBHRMANASH
EEOURABRMNIERZRUASHBERR
RMARMNEREREREABO TS 2 RREH
BRERARRTRESDHFEFER -



On a final note, | would like to express my sincere gratitude and appreciation to all
shareholders, board members, our conscientious staff members, loyal customers,
business partners and other stakeholders for their continuing support and

commitment to the Group. | would also like to welcome our new team members, Ms.

Estella Ng, Deputy Chairman, Chief Strategy Officer & Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary, and Ms. Frances Yip, Chief Talent Officer, to the TSL family. As
a passionate and committed leader, | am determined to lead the Group through all
the challenges and achieve its vision and mission.

Let’s keep our fingers crossed!

Yau On Yee, Annie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 May 2016

B&  EAR2ERR EFEREE TREEZ
2REET  LEEET EBBARAEMENEY
FEB-—EHERNIXET AAZLFUARGHE -
FANFLEHENBERORMNTRE  F&EEH
ZEIEF BEXRHEFBERQAWE -AHE
Lt RAEBZADERBH-EB2H Lo
ELHERERBENEEA  FAXREFTELE
BEBHBRRESHABSRED °
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RESULTS OF THE GROUP

The consolidated turnover of the Group for the Year declined by 8.6% to HK$3,539
million from HK$3,871 million last year. The profit attributable to owners of the
Company declined by 40.6% to HK$23.6 million from HK$39.8 million last year.
Earnings per share for the Year was 11.2 HK cents.

The decline in sales and profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year
was mainly attributable to a significant year-on-year drop in retail sales activity

in Hong Kong resulting from a reduction in the number of tourists visiting from
Mainland China. The continuing political uncertainty in Hong Kong, the devaluation
of the Renminbi and the austerity measures undertaken by the Mainland
government all conspired to give rise to a reduction in tourist arrivals, overall
consumer confidence and consumer purchasing power. Notwithstanding the decline
in sales activity in Hong Kong, we were able to partially offset this decline by the
growth of our business in Mainland China particularly our franchise business which
the Group started last year.

In addition, notwithstanding the tough trading conditions experienced by the Group
in Hong Kong, we were able to limit the drop in overall consolidated gross margin to
1% from 46.5% to 45.5% during the Year due to our corporate policy on consistent
monitoring of gross margins. Unfortunately, the high level of rental in Hong Kong
and Macau still remains a challenge as it has still not reacted to the market
downturn at the same rate as the decline in retail sales so is still out of synchronize
with the prevailing economic and retail conditions in Hong Kong. We continue to
review our tenancies as they expire and are striving for a more reasonable market
rental rate so as to make our retail businesses more sustainable going forward.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Retailing Business
Hong Kong and Macau

With a significant drop in the number of tourists visiting Hong Kong and Macau from
Mainland China during the Year, overall tourist and customers’ spending decreased
as a result. During the Year, the sales turnover of retail section in Hong Kong and
Macau dropped by 21.9% and same store sales growth was minus 24.3%. In spite
of this challenging market situation, the Group identified opportunities in the local
market by opening three new stores (one in Olympian City, Mongkok, one in Plaza
Hollywood, Diamond Hill and one in Temple Mall North, Wong Tai Sin) and closing
two stores during the Year. We will keep reviewing and expanding our store portfolio
prudently so as to better serve our customers. The total number of self-operated
outlets in Hong Kong and Macau were 28 and 3 stores, respectively, at the end of
the Year.

SEXE
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In terms of the product types, the consumption pattern changed
during the Year moving away from luxury jewellery products and
high-ticketed items towards more popular mass market commodities.
To accommodate the changing market, the Group launched Finger
Language campaign in order to attract the younger generation — this
was well received by social media enthusiasts. The Group will keep
on developing various lines of products in order to meet changing
customers’ needs.

Mainland China

Our retall business in Mainland China achieved pleasing growth
during the Year of 2.3% with same store sales growth was 1.5%. This
business accounted for 40.0% of the Group’s turnover. Similar to the
market in Hong Kong, more focus has been given to the development
and expansion of the end-user market and on our quality design

and craftsmanship. The Group will regularly review its store network
and increase the store opening pace to better reach and serve our
customers. The total number of self-operated outlets was 187 at the
end of the Year.

There was a rapid growth to our franchised store business in Mainland
China. During the Year, 49 new stores were opened under the Group’s
franchising model, representing an increase of franchised stores

from 34 to 83 which, when coupled with our 187 self-operated stores,
meant the Group had 270 stores in total in Mainland China extending
its footprint to 108 cities. With our focus to further penetrate into the
Mainland China market, the new stores were opened in the second
and third tier cities across various provinces, among others, Sichuan,
Anhui, Shandong, Jiangsu, Henan, Hunan and Fujian Provinces to
reinforce our market presence. To maintain the consistency and the
high quality standards of the Group, although such franchised stores
are owned by the franchisees, the store operation remain under the
management of the Group enabling the franchisee to leverage on the
Group’s retail and brand management experience.

Malaysia

Notwithstanding the introduction of a 6% Goods and Services Tax in
Malaysia on 1 April 2015, our Malaysia retail business recorded solid
growth of 4.6% during the Year. The Group remains optimistic but
prudent towards the prospects of this business. Should opportunity
arise, the Group will seek to open one to two more stores in Malaysia
in the forthcoming year.
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Wholesale Business

As mentioned above, 49 new stores came into operation via the Group’s franchising
network during the Year bringing the total number of franchised stores to 83 as at 29
February 2016. The Group will continue to explore more opportunities to work with
local business partners to facilitate a more robust growth of the Group’s franchised
store sales network. The Group is looking forward to increasing its franchise sales
network by more than 100 point of sales in Mainland China in the next two years.

Other Business

The Group further extended its e-business platform achieving growth of 584.0%
during the Year (with its comparative figure starting from mid-2014 to February
2015). The Group joined a new e-business platform, VIP.com, in July 2015 and will
continue to explore more suitable channels to complement its existing platforms
and the Group’s brand. With a view to better controlling the operational costs and
logistics, the Group ceased cooperation with an e-business contractor in Mainland
China in early 2016. The Group expects that the e-business channel will be able to
maintain a high growth rate in the forthcoming year.

Outlook

The on-going uncertainty in the world and Mainland China economies and the
political instability in Hong Kong have all resulted in a significant uncertainty in

the outlook for the business environment going forward. We have been taking
ongoing cost control measures to combat this challenging environment. Growth of
other operating overheads including staff costs will also be closely monitored. Our
inventory portfolio has been carefully expanded to cater for the change in the market
conditions but inventory replenishment is prudently controlled with an aim to reduce
the inventory turnover days.

The Group believes that the growing middle class in Mainland China still provides
a solid base for market expansion going forward and that the unfavorable market
environment currently being experienced is cyclical and transient. Despite careful
cost control being applied by the Group at the moment, it will continue to invest in
and enhance its brand, inventory, store network and human resources to ensure
that it can continue to deliver higher returns to our customers and shareholders in
the future.

Driven by its fast expansion during the Year, the Group believes that the franchising
model in Mainland China will continue to be a major element to the growth of

the Group’s turnover, brand development and profitability. The Group will keep
identifying appropriate franchisees for expanding our retail network commensurate
with the Group’s business needs.
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FINANCIAL STRUCTURE

Capital expenditure, comprising mainly store renovation and
expansion, furniture & fixtures and machinery, incurred during the
Year amounted to approximately HK$59 million (2015: HK$61 million),
which was mainly financed by borrowings and funds generated from
internal resources.

As at 29 February 2016, the Group’s interest-bearing liabilities
increased to HK$1,060 million from HK$924 million as at 28 February
2015. Net borrowings (total interest-bearing liabilities less cash and
cash equivalents and time deposits) decreased from HK$636 million
to HK$604 million.

Internally generated funding and borrowings have mainly been
applied during the Year to finance the enhancement of the Group’s
inventories, the opening of new stores and capital expenditure.

The net gearing ratio (the ratio of total interest-bearing liabilities (less
cash, cash equivalents and time deposits) to total equity) increased
from 58% to 59% during the Year and is at a healthy level. All
borrowings of the Group are denominated in Hong Kong dollars or
RMB. Interest on bank borrowings is calculated on either the inter-
bank interest rate or the prime rate or the benchmark interest rate
while interest on convertible bonds is fixed.

As at 29 February 2016, the Group had time deposits and cash and
bank balances, and undrawn banking facilities of approximately
HK$456 million and HK$214 million, respectively, which, in the opinion
of the directors, should be sufficient to meet the Group’s present
working capital requirements.

Exchange Rates

During the Year, the transactions of the Group were mainly
denominated in local currencies and United States dollars. The impact
of any fluctuation of the exchange rate of these currencies to the
Group is minimal.
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Charge on Group Assets and Contingent Liabilities

(&) The Group entered into banking facility arrangements with two banks
pursuant to which certain fixed properties (i.e. land and buildings with
aggregate carrying value as at 29 February 2016 of HK$53,678,000 (2015:

HK$55,492,000) in Hong Kong were mortgaged by way of a first legal charge,

as security for, inter alia, all obligations and liabilities, actual or contingent,
from time to time owing by the Group to the banks.

(b) As at 29 February 2016, time deposits of 2 subsidiaries in the PRC
denominated in RMB totaling equivalent to HK$54,238,000 (2015:
HK$27,184,000) have been pledged to secure several gold loan contracts
outstanding at the end of the reporting period.

(c) As at 29 February 2016, time deposits of 2 subsidiaries in the PRC
denominated in RMB totaling the equivalent to HK$179,558,000 (2015:
HK$126,633,000) have been pledged to secure standby letters of credit
issued by banks to the banks of another 2 subsidiaries in Hong Kong for a
cross border treasury arrangement.

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities not provided for in the
financial statements as at 29 February 2016 (2015: Nil).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 29 February 2016, the total number of employees of the Group was
approximately 3,420 (2015: 3,550). The change was mainly due to downsizing
of factory, normal staff turnover and delayed recruitment in light of the uncertain
business environment.

Employees are rewarded on a performance basis with reference to market rates.
Other employee benefits include medical cover and subsidies for job-related
continuing education. Retail frontline staff are provided with formal on-the-job
training by internal senior staff and external professional trainers. There are
discussions and in-house seminars for experience sharing.
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THE FOUNDER
AlA

TSE SUI LUEN msse

, aged 79, the Group’s Founder. Mr. Tse provides general advisory &
strategic advice to the Group. He was the Chairman of the Group from 1987 to 2000
and re-joined the Group in September 2011. He is a veteran jewellery expert having
over 50 years of experience in jewellery industry.
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He has a wide range of experience in gem setting, quality control,
administration, operations, management and marketing. He also
has very good personal networks with the peers and suppliers,
which facilitate the Group’s business development. Mr. Tse is a
member of the Political Consultative Committee of Huadu District,
Guangzhou in the People’s Republic of China. He is the father of
Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, the Deputy Chief Executive Officer —
Supplies and the controlling shareholder of the Group, and the
father-in-law of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Group.
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DIRECTORS
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Yau On Yee Annie
1 BBRE Chairm_an, C_hief Executive Officer and

Executive Director
IE THEBRHTES

Ng Yi Kum, Estela

2 Deputy Chairman,
Chief Strategy Officer & Chief Financial Officer,

Company Secretary and Executive Director
BERF EERRENBE
AEMERHTES

Erwin Steve Huang

3 Deputy Chairman and

Non-Executive Director
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Wang Guosheng

4 FER Non—gxecutive Director
FHITES

Chui Chi Yun, Robert

5 A= Independent
Non-Executive Director

BYFHTES

Chow Chee Wai, Christopher
Independent
Non-Executive Director
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Chan Yue Kwong, \ichael
BRI Independen_t

Non-Executive Director
BYFHITES

Chan Lap Yip, Lambert
Deputy Chief Executive Officer — Commercial and

Executive Director (resigned on 1 June 2016)
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YAU ON YEE, ANNIE sz

ACUROIRNGCEWANIEY, aged 45, is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Group. She joined the Group in 2002, and became
an Executive Director in 2006.
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She is also a director of all subsidiaries of the Company. In the
early years at the Company, she pioneered the Group’s Jewellery
ERP discipline and modernized the Company’s management
through business process re-engineering. Prior to joining the
Group, she worked for multi-national companies such as Motorola
Semiconductors and IBM. She has over 23 years of management
experience in the USA and Hong Kong. She is a director of each
of Partner Logistics Limited and Blink Technology Limited which
have discloseable interests in the Company under provisions

of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. She graduated from
Boston University, USA and holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Computer Engineering. Ms. Yau is the spouse of Mr. Tse Tat Fung,
Tommy, the Deputy Chief Executive Officer — Supplies and the
controlling shareholder of the Group, and the daughter-in-law of
Mr. Tse Sui Luen, the Founder of the Group.

Ms. Yau has been appointed as a member of each of Jewellery
Industry Training Advisory Committee and Quality Tourism
Services Association Governing Council (Retail Category), she
has also been appointed as a member of 2016 Theme Year
Working Party of the Hong Kong Management Association.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ng Yi Kum, Estella, aged 58, is an Executive Director and the
Deputy Chairman of the Company. She has also been appointed as
the Chief Strategy Officer & Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of the Group with effect from 27 July 2015 and 1 August
2015 respectively. She is responsible for Group Finance and other
administrative functions as well as defining corporate strategies of the
Group. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

From January 2008 to April 2014, Ms. Ng was the Chief Financial
Officer of Country Garden Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code:
2007), a company whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). From September 2005
to November 2007, she was an executive director of Hang Lung
Properties Limited (“Hang Lung”) (Stock Code: 101), a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. Prior to her joining
in Hang Lung in 2003, she was employed by the Stock Exchange in
a number of senior positions, most recently as Senior Vice President
of the Listing Division. Prior to that, she gained valuable auditing
experience with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. Ms. Ng is a qualified
accountant and holds a Master of Business Administration degree
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. She is an
associate of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She has also
contributed her time to various public service appointments, including
being a co-opted member of the audit committee of the Hospital
Authority until November 2013.

Ms. Ng is an independent non-executive director of each of China
Power New Energy Development Company Limited (Stock Code:
735) and Tianjin Development Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 882),
both companies whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
With effect from 6 May 2016, Ms. Ng has been appointed as an
independent director of DS Healthcare Group, Inc., a company the
shares of which are listed on the Nasdaq Capital Market in the United
States. She served as an independent non-executive director of
China Mobile Games and Entertainment Group Limited, a company
whose shares are listed by way of American Depositary Shares on the
Nasdag Global Market in the United States, until 10 August 2015. Ms.
Ng also served as an independent non-executive director of Cypress
Jade Agricultural Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 875) and Hong Kong
Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 2882) until 7
June 2013 and 31 July 2015 respectively, all companies are listed on
the Stock Exchange.

HITES

HBE BESSE KARAZATESRE X
f& o A2015F7H27H 201568 1B D R E &
EARRFAZCEERRENEERARAME - &
EEAEEME THRERGERKREINEZT - ®
TAERABBOHBARZESE -

HR2008F 1B £E2014F 48  ha Lt HEHEER
BRAT(RBOMRIE 12007) 2 HEMBE » 22
AZBROREBHERSMEBRAA (B
£ o R2005F9 8 E20075E 118 - HIVIEEBE
BRAR(TER]D (BRMRE 101 2HTES -
ZAT 2RO AEZE L o #2003 0 A 18
B BETBIFMZESHRBN  BEBKES
FHRERAE -Flt oA HEEREHSH
MEHf EHETHFANSEELR ALt A
EEREIHM UBEEEREABRINEEE
TENY - FARKBREBEHESTSIMASE
E BHERERTBRAELAEEE -HEZHFL
REFHMAETERSE TREGTMOAESERS
E UREESTHHHERE - FAREZED
HRE  SRETEREERERZESNRER
B ZE2013F 118 °

HZTBEAETPEESHIHERERERLT(RH
K% 735 R R ZHEEREGRAT (RHRE -
88)BUFHTES  WMEAT 2R MR
RFrE o Azt R2016F5 86 H B EEEADS
Healthcare Group, Inc.2 B Y E%E » —HRBRHESE
BT EREATS EHzAa c HEHEHE
FREREEEERATDZBLIEHTEEZE2015
F8H10B » —ARMUZEBERD A RNERE
MERBRBRT S LT 2Z2AR A2t HAG HE
REBEZRERDFA(BHNAS 875 REBE
BERAROT (BHMRE - 2882) 2B IEHIT
EES A E2013F687H K2015F7H31H » &
ENAERBRAT LT o



NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Erwin Steve Huang, aged 50, is a Non-executive Director and the Deputy
Chairman of the Company. He was the Chief Executive Officer of the Company for
the period from 24 April 2008 to 28 February 2010. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Prior to joining the Group in March 2005, he was

a seasoned entrepreneur in different industries, including publishing, education,
telecom and information technology. Mr. Huang is a non-executive director of Sky
Light Holdings Limited (stock code: 3882), a company whose shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange. He has built and developed multiple companies in London,
San Francisco, Tokyo and Hong Kong in the past years. He holds double degrees
in Business Operation Management and Management Information System from
Boston University, USA.

Mr. Huang is actively engaged in social entrepreneurship with a view to bridging
social needs through innovation and information technology. He is currently the
President of Hong Kong Information Technology Federation, one of the largest

and most respected information communication technology associations in Hong
Kong; the Deputy Chairman of Junior Achievement Hong Kong, dedicated to
inspiring and preparing young leaders to succeed in the global economy through
entrepreneurship and the founding Chief Executive Officer of WebOrganic, a

social enterprise under The Hong Kong Council of Social Service designed to

help 200,000 deprived students participate in digital computing developments and
e-learning. Mr. Huang co-founded in 1996, and currently serves as Vice Chairman of
the Senior Citizen Home Safety Association, a UN award winning non-governmental
organization in Asia, which provides safety bell emergency call services for the
elderly through the use of technology, people-oriented services, and innovative
methods. Mr. Huang also chairs the eLearning Consortium, which has been
instrumental in driving Hong Kong's e-learning initiatives in education reform. In
2011, he was elected as an Election Committee Member (Information Technology)
for the Legislative Council and Chief Executive of HKSAR.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Wang Guosheng, aged 37, has been a Non-executive Director of the Company
since 23 July 2012.

Mr. Wang is currently a senior partner in the private equity team of CDH group

and was a director of CDH King Limited, which has substantial interests in the
convertibles bonds in an aggregate amount of HK$250,000,000 of the Company. He
holds a bachelor degree in Economics from University of International Business and
Economics in Mainland China and a master degree in Business Administration from
INSEAD in France. Mr. Wang has over 14 years of experiences in accounting and
financial sector. Prior to joining CDH group in 2005, he worked for other companies
including KPMG, China International Capital Corporation and IDG Venture Capital.
Mr. Wang is a director of a number of private companies.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chui Chi Yun, Robert, aged 59, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 12 April 1999. Mr. Chui is

a practicing Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Commerce (Major in Accounting) and is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom. Mr. Chui is a Non-executive Director of Addchance Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 3344) and also an Independent Non-executive
Director of each of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited (Stock Code: 8228), PPS International (Holdings) Limited
(Stock Code: 8201) and Wing Lee Property Investments Limited
(Stock Code: 864), all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. He
served as an independent non-executive director of Aurum Pacific
(China) Group Limited (Stock Code: 8148), a company whose shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange, until 2 March 2016. He is currently
the Commissioner of the Hong Kong Road Safety Patrol and a
member of the Road Safety Campaign Committee of the Road Safety
Council. He is also a director of a number of private companies and
associations.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chow Chee Wai, Christopher, aged 49, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 1 March 2013.

Mr. Chow is the Founding Partner of TCC Capital, an advisory and
private equity fund management company. He holds a Diploma of
Investment and Finance from The Securities Institute of Australia,

a Bachelor of Economics degree from The University of Sydney
and is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Chow has over 20 years’ experience in
auditing and merger and acquisition advisory. Prior to founding TCC
Capital, he worked for two of the “Big Four” international accounting
firms in Sydney, Hong Kong and Beijing and was the Partner in
charge of the mergers and acquisitions practice. He possesses
in-depth understanding of financial and capital markets and has
built up substantial experience in advising multinational companies,
state-owned enterprises and private companies in Hong Kong and
Mainland China on a number of direct investments, and mergers and
acquisitions transactions.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 64, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since 25 August 2010.

Mr. Chan was the former chairman and is currently a non-executive director of Café
de Coral Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 341) and is a non-executive director of Tao
Heung Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 573) and the independent non-executive
director of each of Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1382) and Starlite
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 403), all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
He served as an independent non-executive director of Kingboard Laminates
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1888), a company whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange, until 31 July 2015. With effect from 24 November 2015 and 27
January 2016, Mr. Chan has been appointed as an independent non-executive
directors of each of Modern Dental Group Limited (Stock Code: 3600) and Human
Health Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1419), both companies whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan has worked as a professional town planner
with government bodies in Hong Kong and Canada. He holds a double major
degree in Sociology and Political Science, a Master degree in City Planning from
the University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate degree in Business
Administration, as well as being bestowed the Honorary Fellow from Lingnan
University. He is also a member of the Political Consultative Committee of Nanshan
District, Shenzhen in the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Chan has many years

of professional experience in the public sector and over 30 years of management
experience in the food and catering industry. Mr. Chan has been a Governor of the
Canadian Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong and a member of the Task Force
on Promotion of Vocational Education until 2015. He is the General Committee
Member of the Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong, the Adviser of the Quality
Tourism Services Association, the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of
Marketing, and the Chairman of the Business Enterprise Management Centre of the
Hong Kong Management Association. In the public sector, Mr. Chan is appointed
by the Government of the HKSAR as member of the Business Facilitation Advisory
Committee.
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Tse Tat Fung, Tommy

a1y Deputy Chief Executive Officer — Supplies
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SENIOR
MANAGEMENT
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, aged 48, is the Group’s Deputy Chief Executive Officer —
Supplies. He is responsible for strengthening the capability of the Group’s
merchandizing and supplies function as well as meeting the business units’
merchandizing needs. Mr. Tse joined the Group after returning from the USA in
1994. He was the Chairman of the Group from 2000 to 2008 and was, during that
time, responsible for the Group’s overall strategy and business development. During
his absence, his life had been enriched through touching the hearts and souls of the
inmates. He re-joined the Group in September 2011. Mr. Tse graduated from Boston
University and holds a Bachelor of Science (Business Administration) degree,
Bachelor of Science (Mathematics) degree, and Master of Arts (Mathematics)
degree. He is a director of Partner Logistics Limited and Blink Technology Limited
which have discloseable interests in the Company under provisions of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance. He is the son of Mr. Tse Sui Luen, the Founder of the
Group, the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group, and is the controlling shareholder of the Group.
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CHIEF TALENT OFFICER

Yip Wai Fan, Frances, aged 48, is the Group’s Chief Talent Officer.
She is responsible for formulating strategic Human Resources
direction for the Group, and partnering with people leaders in
managing and developing talents to meet the short and long-term
business objectives of the Group. The scope covers Talent Acquisition,
Training and Development, Compensation & Benefits, Performance
Management & Employee Relations. She has a wealth of experience
in Human Resources Management and Talent Development capacity.
Prior to joining the Group in May 2016, she was the Director — Human
Resources, Asia Pacific for CSL Behring Asia Pacific. She also worked
for Hysan Development, Korn/Ferry International and Bausch & Lomb
etc. Ms. Yip graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and
holds a Bachelor degree in Social Sciences. She also holds a Master
of Management in Human Resources Management, conferred by
Macquarie University, Australia.
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Yip Wai Fan,
Frances

Chief Talent Officer
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Wong Kai Tung,
Dominic
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REFPORT
2@1 6/1 6 BR HEREARS

SMALL STEPS MAKE A BIG DIFFERENCE

In 2015/16, TSL Group made important steps in the journey to becoming a socially responsible corporate
citizen and to building a sustainable society as a whole. We continued to make humble efforts in giving back
to our people, environment and society amidst unfavorable retail market conditions. We believe that small
steps can make a big difference.
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1. (From left) Ms Jane Lau, Chief Executive of UNICEF HK,
Mr Tse Sui Luen, Founder of the Group and Ms Charlie Young,
Ambassador of UNICEF HK at the “Your Little, Their Mickle”

launch ceremony
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2. The TSL senior management and officiating guests at the
launch ceremony of “Your Little, Their Mickle”, a three-year
charity campaign supporting UNICEF HK
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BHEBEXNLER



3. TSL Pulse, Group-level staff e-magazine and TSL Newsletter
(China), a monthly staff bulletin for China staff
EBETH LTSI ) K Bl it & fCTSLIF I B B T1)

4. Fire-extinguisher trainings for new staff

#E)1 5 2 R A R A IR

5. Distribution of festive delights to staff at Headquarters during Mid-
autumn festival and Christmas
MEEANE TIREPURELS B X

6. Our staff’'s masterpieces at latte art workshop

5 55 12 W0 Bk H TE SR 2 B9 B 4F

7. Posing with Good Samaritan restaurant owner Chan Cheuk Ming
or “Ming Gor”, after distributing free meal boxes to the needy in
Sham Shui Po, Hong Kong

ETREEEZEZEIRNBIAT IRBRITERBRKLE
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OUR PEOPLE

At TSL, we provide a fair, safe, caring and supportive workplace environment for
employees.

Staff Composition in Hong Kong, Macau and China &3 - Bk PERBHETAS

Segment of Workforce
TEMEER

23.9% 10.0%

‘ 14.7% "'
66.1% ’ ﬂ
46.8%

Age Distribution
Fieo

4.7% 0.1%

I Below 18 18T
18-29 18-29%%

W 30-39 30-39%%

W 40-49 40-498%

[ 50and above 50BEEMAE

B Manufacturing 0 T&BF9
M Frontline  FI42ERFY
B Back office %“EIBM

Justice and Fairness

We believe that a just and fair workplace is essential for all to thrive. Apart from
offering competitive remuneration, benefits and leaves to recruit and retain talents,
the Group is committed to fostering a culture of diversity and inclusion. Our practices
and policies on recruitment and selection, promotion, transfer, compensation and
benefits, employee development and training, are made without regard to race,
religious beliefs, gender, family or marital status, age, language, ethnicity, or place of
origins. No child or forced labor is allowed. We conduct annual reviews and reward
our staff on their performances, while we also institutionalize a set of fair guidelines
on disciplinary actions on employees to ensure compliance with the Group’s pre-
determined standards.

Safety and Health

At TSL, nothing comes before the safety and health of our people. There were

no work-related fatalities in 2015/16 and lost days due to work injury were 591
man-days. We enhanced the medical insurance package which includes outpatient
medical claim, dental and hospitalization plan for our staff. A health and safety
committee is in place to minimize accidents in the workplace and ensure that
employees receive adequate safety and health training relevant to their work
positions. Regular safety meetings are held and safety promotional articles were
published in the Group’s staff e-magazine. In precaution of hazards and accidents,
fire drills, fire-extinguisher trainings and chemical drills are organized for staff in the
office and jewellery production workshops.
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* Percentages may not add to 100% due to rounding
EREMREER - B2 AR RS S H100%

AFRAENITHERE
EERREETREFR SAEELFLEN
BE -BRTREMHARSIDINHEH BARRD
o BPNEEXATZEZAREE - RME
RE -EE AR FHREFN ETBRERE
FNEBRBRY A FEER  R¥ 0%
B RERERARR - F&  FSREEBEK
B UYEFAFEAREBIRBHRET - RN
HETINWIFERRETFEFHALTUEBER
B ENERETESTLRES T BRET
BRIEFEBBRENES -

RERERR
EEBEINZE2NREREEL -EBE
2015/16F R AE TR TEE - THESBWEI W
REFRBAA591H - HMRETREMD - F
MRERRENBEREE  KERINTSLE
2EEEEERS ITHFRENSIRBRETE
TEHHEBEMENZEREEEI) - EEEE
HETEE THEEIMRTEXE 2EHZ
BREM - BBLAERZNEE SFEARLE
RHREBIFENEIRZHETAERE HAGE
AIRRACBYRBIEHRE

o



Care and Concern

We work hard to strike a balance between the needs of staff and the costs under
the tough business environment, and go the extra mile to let our people know that
we care. One good example is Fruit Day — distributing fruit to all staff in Hong Kong
once a month to promote healthy life. The Group continues to provide the innovative
“Anniversary Leaves” for all Hong Kong employees to be entitled a one-day leave on
their wedding or employment anniversaries. An Employee Assistance Programme

is provided to Hong Kong employees and their family members, whereby they can
call or meet with counselors of an assigned service provider if they want help to deal
with stress from work, family and personal issues. All conversations conducted are
kept in strict confidence.

The staff social club continued to organize social and leisure activities for employees
regularly to bring them closer in an expanding company. Those who took part

in wine tasting classes, health talks and latte art workshops learned something

new, while others found the joy of giving in joining UNICEF Hong Kong’s Charity
Run to support “AlIDS-free generation”, and helping Good Samaritan restaurant
owner Chan Cheuk Ming, or “Ming Gor”, distribute free meal boxes to the poor and
homeless in Sham Shui Po, Hong Kong.

The Group listens to the voices of its employees and advocates two-way
communications. TSL Pulse, a quarterly Group-level staff e-magazine and TSL
Newsletter (China), a monthly staff bulletin in China were launched for employees
to keep track on the Group’s latest development across all geographical locations.
Staff is also encouraged to share their stories about work and personal moments on
these platforms.

The first Staff Engagement Survey was held in June 2015 to evaluate staff's
understanding on the Group’s Vision, Mission and Values (VMV) behaviors,
measure staff engagement level and collect staff feedback on various aspects.
Key results were announced and reported to all staff and were taken as important
reference for TSL top management on their decisions regarding areas of employee
benefits, internal communication and training programmes.

Training and Development

The Group is known in the trade for its investment in staff development. Over
36,000 hours of training were delivered to our staff in Hong Kong, Macau and
China in 2015/16. A comprehensive and structured curriculum comprising

product knowledge, service and selling skills, complaints handling techniques,

and managerial competences were arranged for different levels of frontline staff.

To sharpen our frontline staff's competencies, the Group enrolled in numerous
competitions and programmes including Hong Kong Retail Management Association
(HKRMA) Service and Courtesy Awards, HKRMA Mystery Shopper Programme and
Hong Kong Tourism Board Outstanding QTS Merchant and Service Staff Awards
and bagged numerous awards in the year. To advocate a self-learning culture
among employees, the Training department provides useful work-related tips and
holds quizzes on an e-platform for all to learn in a fun way.
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OUR PRACTICES

The Group is committed to ethical conduct and to becoming a corporation all
stakeholders can trust.

Product Responsibility

The Group requires all suppliers to use green and hazard-free materials along the
production pipeline. Our products are recognized by “Quality Gold Mark Scheme”
and “Natural Fei Cui Quality Mark” of the Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’
Association, and “Natural Diamond Quality Assurance” and “Integrity Pledge” of the
Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, as well as “No Fakes Pledge” of the Intellectual
Property Department of Hong Kong.

A pioneer in quality customer services among Hong Kong jewelers, we provide
service which is well recognized by Quality Tourism Scheme (QTS) of the Quality
Tourism Services Association. We also strive to achieve a high level of after-sales
service. Customer feedback is collected via a designated customer service hotline
and email address, and also other channels such as social media platforms.
Reports of enquiries and complaints are recorded and reviewed regularly by the
management team for improvements on products and services.

Intellectual Property Rights Protection

In order to protect our brand names and products, we have applied for trademarks
and designs registrations in different jurisdictions. For instance, “TSL” is one of
the renowned trademarks for the Group. We will keep monitoring against any
infringement on our registered trademarks or designs.

Consumer Data Protection

We handle customer data with great care and customers can rest assured that

their personal data is in good hands. Our operations in Hong Kong observes
Personal Data Privacy Ordinance, and apart from using passwords for computerized
information and locking away member application forms, we only work with vendors
that abide by the same standards to handle and destroy expired information.

Anti-Corruption

The Group believes that honesty, integrity and fair play are important assets. The
Group implements a strict Code of Conduct on all employees with provisions
prohibiting solicitation and acceptance of advantages that breaches would result in
disciplinary action. Reminders are sent to employees regularly and they are also
required to notify business partners, suppliers and contractors on the policy. The
Group also maintains a set of whistle-blowing procedures and regularly reviews
the effectiveness of the internal control systems. During the year, no legal cases
regarding corrupt practices have been brought against the Group.
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OUR ENVIRONMENT

The Group contributes to making the world a greener place to live in. We were
recognized for the first time by the “Green Office Awards Labeling Scheme (GOALS)
of the World Green Organization and is named a “Better World Company” of the
United Nations Sustainable Development Goals for our efforts to go green in nine
stipulated aspects of operations in our Hong Kong Headquarters including energy
savings, water savings and waste reduction.

Green
O ice

Hong Kang

Reducing Carbon Emissions

As a major jewellery retailer in Hong Kong, the Group signed the first Charter on
External Lighting launched by the Environment Bureau of Hong Kong to commit
switching off lighting installations during preset times. LED lights are introduced
at new fixtures and stores, and digital signage system for gold price display helps
reduce waste and transportation of materials.

In the office, staff is encouraged to reduce energy
consumption by switching off lights and activate energy-
saving mode for computers during lunch hours. Particular
staff is also assigned to turn on and switch off lights and
office equipment before and after office hours. Fewer light
installations are applied in less-frequented common areas.
With the above measures in place, electricity consumption in
Hong Kong headquarters recorded a year-on-year drop of 7.1%.
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Saving on Paper Consumption

Departments are encouraged to use paper wisely. This Annual Report is printed
on paper from responsibly managed forests and/or recycled paper, and marketing
materials and paper cups are produced from recycled paper wherever possible.
Electronic workflows such as E-leaves, E-pay slips and online purchase approval
processes are in place, and e-fax is widely used to reduce use of paper. A new
system with multi-functions of copy, print, scan and fax was implemented at our
Hong Kong headquarters in February 2016 to help departments monitor and
review paper use. The default printing setting of copiers is double-sided and staff
is encouraged to print only when necessary and to print in black and white. As a
result, consumption of A4 and A3 paper in our Hong Kong headquarters in the year
dropped by 10% and 45% respectively.
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OUR COMMUNITY

The Group is devoted to giving back to society at all times. Our wholly-owned
subsidiary, TSL Jewellery (H.K.) Co. Ltd, was awarded 5 Years Plus Caring
Company Logo, while Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Ltd was once again
awarded the Caring Company Logo.

C. .+
-

caringcompany

Awarded by The Fong Kon Counil o Socia Senice
FAM ERIBHERE

“Your Little, Their Mickle” Campaign supports UNICEF HK

A major highlight of our corporate social responsibility efforts in 2015/16 was the
launch of “Your Little Their Mickle”, a charity campaign which will last for three
years starting from 2015. By grouping small efforts to make a big difference, “Your
Little Their Mickle” supports UNICEF Hong Kong to improve water and hygiene at
schools and households in rural areas across China. The Programme also includes
sanitation education to children, which encourages them to pass on their knowledge
on hygiene practices to their families and community. The Group is honored to have
Mr Jermaine Jackson, a well-known composer, singer and member of The Jackson
5, to show his support to the campaign by writing the theme song “iPANDAS”.

Customers are encouraged to donate the spare change from jewellery purchase at
any TSL Jewellery stores in Hong Kong, and the Group would match every dollar
donated to UNICEF Hong Kong as a token of thanks for their support. A series of
charity sale items including jewellery box, jewellery loupe and wedding red packets
were tailor-made for this campaign, with all proceeds exceeding costs to go to
UNICEF Hong Kong. An internal sale of the items was held among Hong Kong staff
to engage their support for the charitable cause.

Apart from supporting UNICEF Hong Kong, the Group also sponsored Children
Charity Foundation for its emergency education funds for needy local students
entering universities.

Contributing to the betterment of the trade

Mrs. Annie Yau Tse, Chairman and CEO of the Group, was appointed a member

of the Jewellery Industry Training Advisory Committee (ITAC) from 2016 to 2018

by the Secretary for Education of Hong Kong to facilitate the development of the
gualifications and standards of education in the jewellery industry. She also became
an elected member of the Quality Tourism Services Association (“QTSA”) Governing
Council (Retailer Category) for 2015—-2017, contributing to improving the standards
and prosperity of Hong Kong’s retail and tourism-related sectors.
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THE TSL | i 3 B FOUNDATION

The TSL | #i5% 8 Foundation, which was founded and supported by the Group,
continued to support the education sector on promoting creativity among the new
generation in 2015/16. TSL | #i% B Sponsorship awarded final year students
majoring in Global Creative Industries of the School of Modern Languages

and Cultures of the University of Hong Kong for their outstanding concepts

and presentations of their final year project. The TSL | #i### Foundation also
sponsored the Mini 4WD Model Car Racing organized by La Salle Primary School
with an aim to inspire innovation among the young generation.

The Group’s senior management also gives back to society by sharing their
experience and knowledge as innovators in the Hong Kong jewellery industry.
Mrs Annie Yau Tse, Chairman and CEO and Mr. Lambert Chan, Deputy CEO —
Commercial, shared their experience in transforming the TSL brand with IMBA
students from Shanghai Fudan University at the University of Hong Kong in guest
lectures.

1. TSL | #i¥5 8 Foundation sponsored the Mini 4WD Model
Car Racing organised by La Salle Primary School

TSL | HEBESEDARND NBERN ERELBER
KRR E K& |

2. Ms Annie Yau, Chairman and CEO shared her insights

with IMBA students from Shanghai Fudan University at the

University of Hong Kong in a guest lecture
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REPORT
OF T

The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board”) have pleasure in
presenting their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 29 February 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities
and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 29 February 2016 and the financial
position of the Group as at that date are set out in the consolidated financial

statements on pages 74 to 171 of this annual report.

The Directors have recommended a final dividend of 2.6 HK cents per ordinary

share (2015: 3.7 HK cents per ordinary share), amounting to a total final dividend of
approximately HK$5,469,000 (2015: HK$7,782,000) for the year ended 29 February

2016. Together with the interim dividend of 1.5 HK cents per ordinary share (2015:

1.2 HK cents per ordinary share) paid on Thursday, 26 November 2015, will amount

to a total dividend of 4.1 HK cents per ordinary share for the year (2015: 4.9 HK
cents per ordinary share).

The proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming annual general meeting

of the Company (the “2016 AGM”) to be held on Thursday, 21 July 2016, will be
payable on Wednesday, 7 September 2016 to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Wednesday, 3 August 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review and the outlook of the Group’s business are provided in the Letter to
Shareholders on pages 6 to 9 and the Management'’s Discussion and Analysis on
pages 10 to 15 of this annual report. No important event affecting the Group has
occurred since the end of the financial year under review. Certain financial key
performance indicators can be found in the Financial Highlights on page 2.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are shown in
note 40 to the financial statements.

An account of the Group’s relationship with its key stakeholders and discussions
on the Group’s environmental policies and performance are included in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 34 to 41, and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations are included in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 60 to 71.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the following periods:

(@) from Monday, 18 July 2016 to Thursday, 21 July 2016 (both days inclusive),
for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitiement to attend and vote at
the 2016 AGM. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the 2016 AGM, all
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries
Limited of Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong Time) on Friday, 15 July 2016; and

(b)  from Tuesday, 2 August 2016 to Wednesday, 3 August 2016 (both days
inclusive), for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to
the proposed final dividend. In order to be qualified for the proposed final
dividend, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Branch Share Registrar, Tricor
Secretaries Limited at the address as set out in sub-paragraph (a) above no
later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong Time) on Monday, 1 August 2016.

During the periods mentioned in sub-paragraph (a) and (b) above, no transfer of
shares will be registered.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS, CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorized or issued share
capital during the year.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws or the
laws in Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

Details of other equity-linked agreements, are included in “Share Option Scheme”
and “Convertible Securities, Options or Similar Rights” below.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$207,000
(2015: HK$400,000).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 29 February 2016, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981
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(as amended), amounted to approximately HK$680,722,000, which represented the
contributed surplus and retained profits of the Company, of which HK$5,469,000 has
been proposed as a final dividend for the year.

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended), the contributed surplus of
the Company is available for distribution. However, the Company cannot declare
or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of this contributed surplus if: (i) it is,
or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or
(i) the realizable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium.

In addition, the share premium with balance of approximately HK$123,365,000 may
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Details of the above are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.
MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 29 February 2016, the five largest customers in aggregate
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s turnover. The five largest suppliers in
aggregate and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 65.2%
and 24.3% respectively by value of the Group’s total purchases.

As set out in note 37(a) to the consolidated financial statements, Rosy Blue Hong
Kong Limited, one of the Group’s five largest suppliers, is a subsidiary of Prime
Investments S.A., which is a preference shareholder of Partner Logistics Limited
(the Company’s immediate holding company).

Except for the above, none of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
major customers and suppliers noted above.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive Directors
Yau On Yee, Annie (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Ng Yi Kum, Estella* (Deputy Chairman, Chief Strategy Officer &
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary)
Chan Lambert Lap Yip** (Deputy Chief Executive Officer — Commercial)
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence™**

Non-executive Directors

Erwin Steve Huang (Deputy Chairman)
Wang Guosheng
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Chui Chi Yun, Robert

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael
Chow Chee Wai, Christopher
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin***

Notes:

* Appointed on 15 December 2015
b Appointed on 24 July 2015

ok Resigned on 1 August 2015

*xxx Resigned on 1 January 2016

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws and to comply with
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules,
Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella, Messrs. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Chow Chee Wai,
Christopher will retire as Directors at the 2016 AGM. Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella, being
eligible, will offer herself for re-election as an executive Director for a term of three
years. Messrs. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Chow Chee Wai, Christopher, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as an independent non-executive
Director for a term of three years respectively. All other Directors continue in office
for the ensuing year.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from each of the
current independent non-executive Directors and as at the date of this report still
considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2016 AGM has a service contract with
the Group which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 29 February 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors and

chief executive and/or their respective associates of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFQO”)), which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required to be entered in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”), were as follows:
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(i) Interests and long positions in issued shares of the Company

() RELEANEBRTROZEZRHER

(i) Yau On Yee, Annie 100,000 152,960,917 1,210,000
i3 (Note ffz£1) (NotesHfz£2&3)
4,000 1,210,000
(Note fiz11) (Notes f72&3)

(i)  Erwin Steve Huang 100,000 - -

HEEX

(i) Chan Lambert Lap Yip 10,000 = =

BRAL % (Note f#z#3)

*

Notes:

The percentage was calculated based on 210,336,221 ordinary shares in issue as
at 29 February 2016.

152,960,917 ordinary shares are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a company
which is owned and controlled by Blink Technology Limited. Blink Technology
Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, the spouse
of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an Executive Director of the Company. By virtue of the
SFO, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by
Partner Logistics Limited.

4,000 ordinary shares were bought by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy on the Stock
Exchange. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie is deemed to be
interested in all the shares held by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy.

1,210,000 share options of the Company were granted to each of Ms. Yau On
Yee, Annie and Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy on 1 March 2013. By virtue of the SFO,
Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie is deemed to be interested in all the share options of the
Company which granted to Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy.

Duplication occurred in respect of the same blocks of share options as separately
set out under section (ii) “Interests in underlying shares of the Company”.

73.92%

- - 0.05%

= = 0.95%
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(i) Interests in underlying shares of the Company (i) RELTDEBERGHES
As at 29 February 2016, the Directors had interests in option to subscribe for M2016F2H29H » EEFEARBALD
shares of the Company as follows: ARDNERERRNT ¢
Yau On Yee, Annie 01/03/2013 1,210,000 - 1,210,000 HK$4.13  15%: 01/09/2014 -
B (Note/#2) 29/0212020
15%:  01/03/2015 -
29/02/2020
30%: 01/03/2016 -
29/02/2020
40%:  01/03/2017 -
29/02/2020
Erwin Steve Huang —ditto & £ - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 - —dito@E- —ditto @ £ -
BEEX
Chan Lambert Lap Yip - ditto & £ - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 ~ditto & £ - — ditto @ £ -
By
Note: Hrat -
The closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the Stock Exchange on 1 March AR ERGR2013F3A1H (BN EEEREZ
2013 was HK$4.13, being the date on which the relevant options were offered for grant. BYRTAR) EBXREZ KT EHEE

4.137T °
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Other than as disclosed above, as at 29 February 2016, none of the Directors, chief
executive and their respective associates of the Company, had any other interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
required notification to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which any
such Director or chief executive is taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO); or which were required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
to be entered into the register maintained by the Company; or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company or the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 29 February 2016, the interests, all being long positions, of any substantial
shareholders or other persons (not being Directors or chief executive of the
Company) in the shares and/or underlying shares of the Company which have been
disclosed to the Company pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and have been recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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(i)
(iii)

(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)
(ix)
()
(i)
(xii)

Partner Logistics Limited (Note f#a£1)

Blink Technology Limited (Note 72#1)

Tse Tat Fung, Tommy (Note/#/2#1)

Prime Investments S.A. (Note f#i#2)

Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L. (Note f/2#2)

Asiya Trust Co. Pte. Limited (Note f/2#2)

Viraj Russell Mehta (Note #7512)

CDH King Limited (Notes4/z#3&4)

CDH Fund IV, L.P. (Note f/224)

CDH IV Holdings Company Limited
(NoteAzt4)

China Diamond Holdings IV, L.P.
(Note#z74)

China Diamond Holdings Company Limited
(Note#7#4)

Beneficial owner

ERBEEA

Interest of controlled corporation
e PN

Interest of controlled corporation
e NG

Interest of Spouse

BB AR

Beneficial owner

EEEEA

Interest of controlled corporation
SN RERE

Interest of controlled corporation
FEEHARESE

Trustee

FEA

Settlor of discretionary trust
BIEEEZHERTA
Beneficial owner

BEREEA

Interest of controlled corporation
SEFD RS

Interest of controlled corporation
SN RESE

Interest of controlled corporation
SEEHARERE

Interest of controlled corporation
ZEEHARERE

The percentage was calculated based on 210,336,221 ordinary shares in issue as at 29
February 2016.

*

= 152,960,917
= 152,960,917
= 152,960,917

1,210,000 100,000

1,210,000 4,000
- 152,960,917
- 152,960,917
- 152,960,917
- 152,960,917

- 39,062,500
(Noteff3%3)
- 39,062,500
(Note #7z#3)
— 39,062,500
(Notef7z3)
- 39,062,500
(Notef7z73)
- 39,062,500
(Note#7z73)

BOoHRERMN2016F2H298 E %17

210,336,221 R E BB E -

72.72%

72.72%

72.72%

0.62%

0.58%

72.72%

72.72%

72.72%

72.72%

18.57%

18.57%

18.57%

18.57%

18.57%
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Notes:

1.

152,960,917 ordinary shares are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a company which is
owned and controlled by Blink Technology Limited. Blink Technology Limited is wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee,
Annie, an Executive Director of the Company. By virtue of the SFO, Blink Technology
Limited, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie (her deemed interest is disclosed under the section
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company “) and Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy are deemed to
be interested in all the shares held by Partner Logistics Limited.

100,000 ordinary shares are held by Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie resulting from the exercise
of share options of the Company on 10 July 2009. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Tse Tat
Fung, Tommy is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Ms. Yau On Yee,
Annie.

1,210,000 share options of the Company are held by Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie. By virtue
of the SFO, Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy is deemed to be interested in all the share options
of the Company held by Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie.

Another 1,210,000 share options of the Company are held by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy
and 4,000 shares were bought by him in the Stock Exchange.

These ordinary shares, relating to the same block of shares mentioned in note 1 above,
are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a company which is owned and controlled by Blink
Technology Limited. Prime Investments S.A. is the preference shareholder of Partner
Logistics Limited. Prime Investments S.A. is wholly owned by Rosy Blue Investments
S.a.R.L., which in turn is wholly owned by Asiya Trust Co. Pte. Limited. Mr. Viraj Russell
Mehta is the settlor and a beneficiary of a discretionary trust, which in turns holds the
entire interest in Rosy Blue Investments S.a.R.L. through Asiya Trust Co. Pte. Limited,
as trustee of the trust. By virtue of the SFO, each of Prime Investments S.A., Rosy

Blue Investments S.a.R.L., Asiya Trust Co. Pte. Limited and Mr. Viraj Russell Mehta, is
deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Partner Logistics Limited.

Pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 31 March 2012 (the “Subscription
Agreement”) entered into between the Company and CDH King Limited (“CDH"), the
Company has issued to CDH, a principal amount of HK$250,000,000 five-year term
convertible bonds (the “Tranche 1 Bonds”) on 20 April 2012 under which CDH could
convert the Tranche 1 Bonds into 39,062,500 ordinary shares of the Company with an
initial conversion price at HK$6.40 per share during the conversion period.

Subject to the full conversion of the Tranche 1 Bonds, the shareholding percentage

of CDH in the enlarged share capital of the Company would become 15.66% and of
parties (i) to (vii) would change from 72.72% to 61.33%. Details of which are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 31 March 2012 and note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.
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Under the Subscription Agreement, the Company had an option to elect to issue to
CDH and CDH had conditionally agreed to subscribe for Tranche 2 bonds convertible
into shares of the Company in an aggregate principal amount of HK$200,000,000 (the
“Tranche 2 Bonds”). CDH has filed a disclosure form to the Company on 19 December
2013 to notify its ceased interests in the Tranche 2 Bonds in an aggregate amount of
HK$200,000,000, and therefore its interest in the share capital of the Company was
decreased from 32.80% to 18.57%.

4. CDH is wholly-owned by CDH Fund IV, L.P., which in turn is owned as to 0.07% by CDH
IV Holdings Company Limited, which in turn is owned as to 80% by China Diamond
Holdings IV, L.P., which in turn is owned as to 1% by China Diamond Holdings Company
Limited.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 29 February 2016, the Company had not
been notified of any persons who had interests or short positions in the shares and/
or underlying shares of the Company, which were required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes of information on
Directors of the Company are as follows:

- The remuneration packages of the following Directors have been revised by
the Remuneration Committee of the Company in consideration of the market
condition:

(i)  the remuneration of Messrs. Chui Chi Yun, Robert, Chan Yue Kwong,
Michael and Chow Chee Wai, Christopher, the independent non-
executive Directors, have been revised to HK$180,000 per annum with
effect from 1 February 2016 respectively; and

(i) the remuneration of Mr. Erwin Steve Huang, a non-executive Director,
has been revised to HK$180,000 per annum and his services on
provision of business consultancy and advisory support to the Company
with remuneration of HK$240,000 per annum were terminated on 29
February 2016;

- Mr. Chow Chee Wai, Christopher, an independent non-executive Director, has
been appointed as a member of Nomination Committee and the chairman of
Remuneration Committee of the Company with effect from 15 December 2015
and 1 January 2016 respectively;

- Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert, an independent non-executive Director, has
resigned as an independent non-executive director of Aurum Pacific (China)
Group Limited (Stock code: 8148), a company the shares of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange, with effect from 2 March 2016;
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- Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, an independent non-executive Director, has
not acted as the Chairman of Café de Coral Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
341) with effect from 1 April 2016. Mr. Chan has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of each of Modern Dental Group Limited
(Stock code: 3600) and Human Health Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1419),
both companies the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange, with
effect from 24 November 2015 and 27 January 2015 respectively and is no
longer the Governor of the Canadian Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong
and a member of the Task Force on Promotion of Vocational Education;

- Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an executive Director, has been appointed as a
member of each of Jewellery Industry Training Advisory Committee and
Quality Tourism Services Association Governing Council (Retail Category),
she has also been appointed as 2016 Theme Year Working Party of the Hong
Kong Management Association; and

- Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella, an executive Director, has been appointed as an
independent director of DS Healthcare Group, Inc., a company the shares of
which are listed on the Nasdaq Capital Market in the United States, with effect
from 6 May 2016 and has been appointed as a member of Remuneration
Committee of the Company with effect from 10 May 2016.

Changes in directors’ emoluments during the financial year are set out in note 9 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted by the shareholders of the
Company on 26 November 2003 (“2003 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of
the 2003 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to participants
thereunder for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are valuable
to the Group and any entity in which the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested
Entity”).

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the Directors are authorized, at their
discretion, at any time following the date of the adoption of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme but before the tenth anniversary of that date, to offer options to any person
belonging to any of the following classes of participants to subscribe for shares of
the Company:

- any employee (whether full time or part time employee, including any
executive Directors but not any non-executive Director) of the Company, any
of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

- any non-executive Director (including independent non-executive Directors) of
the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

- any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity;
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- any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

- any person or entity that provides research, development or technological
support or other services to the Group or any Invested Entity; and

- any shareholder or any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any
holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value of the shares,

the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of the
grant and the average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of offer of the grant. An offer

of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted within 28 days from the date
of offer upon acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee together with a
remittance of HK$1. The maximum number of securities available for issue under
the 2003 Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company. The maximum entitlement of each grantee in any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the ordinary shares in issue of the Company. The option period will
not be more than ten years from the date of grant of the option and the Board may
at its discretion determine the minimum period for which the option has to be held or
other restriction before the exercise of the subscription right attaching thereon.

The 2003 Share Option Scheme was expired on 25 November 2013.
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On 1 March 2013, the number of ordinary shares issuable under options granted

to certain employees of the Group (three of them being the Directors) and

other participants pursuant to the 2003 Share Option Scheme was 15,850,000
(represented approximately 7.54% of the then issued share capital of the Company).
During the financial year, 5,660,000 (2015: 400,000) share options were lapsed due
to the resignation of certain employees and cessation of two service providers. The
movements in the number of share options under the 2003 Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 29 February 2016 were as follows:

FA2013F 3818 » RIE2003F i IR EF B IR
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15,850,000 R Z B ((E AR QA B ERE ETRA
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Employees

=

In aggregate 01/03/2013 11,900,000 - - (3,500,000)
(&3h) (Note#fz#1)

Sub-total 11,900,000 - - (3,500,000)
Nt

Service providers

PRAs HRER

In aggregate 01/03/2013 2,960,000 - - (2,160,000)
(B3t) (Notefz#1)

Sub-total 2,960,000 - (2,160,000)
/J\§—|-

Total 14,860,000 - - (5,660,000)

2y

8,400,000 HK$4.13  15%: 01/09/2014-29/02/2020
(Note 2)  15%: 01/03/2015-29/02/2020

B#4.13  30%: 01/03/2016-29/02/2020

(#iz2)  40%: 01/03/2017-29/02/2020

8,400,000

800,000 HK$4.13  15%: 01/09/2014-29/02/2020
(Note 2)  15%: 01/03/2015-29/02/2020

#B#4.13  30%: 01/03/2016-29/02/2020

(#7zt2)  40%: 01/03/2017-29/02/2020

800,000

9,200,000



Notes:

1) With reference to professional advice, 2,000,000 share options of the Company
should have been re-classified from the class of “Employees” to the class of “Service
providers” with effect from 1 March 2015.

2) The closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the Stock Exchange on 1 March
2013 was HK$4.13, being the date on which the relevant options were offered for grant.

Details of share options granted to the Directors and the relevant movement(s)
during the year ended 29 February 2016 are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company” in this annual report.

Save as 5,660,000 share options lapsed during the year as disclosed above, no
share options were granted, exercised, canceled or lapsed during the year ended 29
February 2016.

Details of the grant of options have been disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 1 March 2013 and note 31 to the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Except for the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, at no time during the year
was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in note 37 of the consolidated financial statements, there was

no connected transactions or contracts of significance to which the Company, its
holding company or subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material
interest or interest in competing business, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year and up to the date of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain significant related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year ended 29 February 2016, which do not constitute connected or continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules are disclosed in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any

substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, every Director or other officers of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or damages which he may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company
has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Directors and officers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the listed securities of the Company during the year ended 29 February 2016.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

There were no movements in the principal amount of convertible bonds of the
Company during the year. Details of which are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Other than the share options under the 2003 Share Option Scheme as disclosed
above and the convertible bonds as disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements, the Company had no other outstanding convertible securities, options or
similar rights as at 29 February 2016.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 29 February 2016
are set out in notes 24 to 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 172 to 173 of this
annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 60 to 71 of this annual report.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 29 February
2016 have been audited by Ernst & Young (“EY”). EY were appointed as the
independent auditors of the Company on 23 July 2013 to fill the vacancy following
the retirement of RSM Nelson Wheeler, Certified Public Accountants. The term of
office of EY will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. EY will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of EY as independent auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the
2016 AGM.

By Order of the Board
Yau On Yee, Annie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 May 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Board has committed to achieving high corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are essential in
providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the interests of shareholders
and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

During the year ended 29 February 2016, the Company has applied the principles
and complied with all the code provisions, except for the code provision A.2.1, as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The chairman and chief executive officer of the Company are held by Ms. Yau

On Yee, Annie. The Board believes that Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie can provide the
Company with strong and consistent leadership and allows for effective and efficient
planning and implementation of business decisions and strategies. The Board also
considers that the current structure of vesting the roles of chairman and the chief
executive in the same person will not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Board and the management of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended
29 February 2016.

The Company has also established written guideline no less exacting than the
Model Code (the “Employees Written Guideline”) for securities transactions by
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of
the Group. No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guideline by
the employees was noted by the Company during the year under review.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board during the year ended 29 February 2016 and up to the
date of this report is as follows:

Executive Directors:

Ms. YAU On Yee, Annie (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. NG Yi Kum, Estella* (Deputy Chairman, Chief Strategy Officer &
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary)
Mr. CHAN Lambert Lap Yip** (Deputy Chief Executive Officer — Commercial)
Mr. LAl Tsz Mo, Lawrence***

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Erwin Steve HUANG (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. WANG Guosheng

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHUI Chi Yun, Robert

Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. CHOW Chee Wai, Christopher
Mr. HENG Ching Kuen, Franklin****

Remarks:

*  Appointed on 15 December 2015
**  Appointed on 24 July 2015

***  Resigned on 1 August 2015

**xx Resigned on 1 January 2016

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors Profile” on pages 18 to 25 of this annual report.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company are held by Ms.
Yau On Yee, Annie. The Board considers that the current management structure
has operated efficiently. According to the Company’s practice, all major strategic
decisions are taken by the Board, or relevant committee of the Board, as duly
constituted.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 29 February 2016, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors, representing one-third of the Board with one
of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

Non-executive Directors and Directors’ Re-election

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive directors shall be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election, whereas code provision A.4.2
states that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election
by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

Each of the Directors is appointed for a specific term of three years and is subject to
retirement by rotation once every three years.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and oversees
the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising
its affairs. The Directors take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the Company

as well as the services and advice from the company secretary and senior
management. The Directors may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by them
and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each Director to
perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material transactions
(in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-
ordinating the daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to
the management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director and of the conduct, business
activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.
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RIEESFIRMEHE  BE2016F2829A 1
FENESSEIEINHENT :

A summary of training received by Directors during the year ended 29 February
2016 according to the records provided by the Directors is as follows:

Executive Directors HITEE:
Ms. YAU On Yee, Annie BZEZL v
Ms. NG Yi Kum, Estella* h#aE Lzt v/
Mr. CHAN Lambert Lap Yip** SRV 7
Mr. LAI Tsz Mo, Lawrence*** E AT W vt o 7
Non-executive Directors FHITES :
Mr. Erwin Steve HUANG BEEKEE v
Mr. WANG Guosheng FEIRRSE 7
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES :
Mr. CHUI Chi Yun, Robert EER{CkE v
Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael BR¥A S SE & v
Mr. CHOW Chee Wai, Christopher BERERE 7
Mr. HENG Ching Kuen, Franklin**** EN vt 7

Remarks: Kra -

* Appointed on 15 December 2015 * R2015F12H15H EZE T

bl Appointed on 24 July 2015 * Ro015F7F24H EZF

Resigned on 1 August 2015 work R2015F8H1H BHE

Hkx Resigned on 1 January 2016 ek 2016151 H BT

BOARD COMMITTEES EEgZEY

EEECRUEXZES FMHZEERESR
ZEE UEBALAREHEBHNEH - L
FEESSZRESYCHTESEBESRE - &
RARBRUE R B  LATERRER

The Board has established the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All the said Board committees of the Company are established with defined written
terms of reference, which are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock

Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon request. =AM
The majority of the members of the said Board committee are independent non- LHREEEZEENABI MBI RBUFH
executive Directors and the list of the chairman and members of each Board TEE BERESSZEENEIERREERE

BN AFREIZSHIAAERET -

committee is set out under “Corporate Information” on pages 4 to 5 of this annual
report.



Audit Committee
The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include the following:

» To review the financial statements and reports and consider any significant
or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff responsible for accounting
and financial reporting function, compliance officer, internal auditor or external
auditors before submission to the Board;

» To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting
system, internal control system and risk management system; and

» To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference to the work
performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of external auditors.

The Audit Committee oversees the internal control system of the Group, reviews the
internal audit report submitted by the Internal Audit Department, reports to the Board
on any material issues, and makes recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and annual financial
results and reports in respect of the year ended 29 February 2016 and significant
issues on the financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal control and
risk management systems, scope of work and re-appointment of external auditors.

Remuneration Committee
The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include the following:

« To make recommendations to the Board on the establishment of procedures for
developing the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and the senior
management, which shall ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration;

« To determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and the senior management by reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions;

¢ To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of the
non-executive Directors by reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions; and

* To review and approve the compensation arrangements for the executive
Directors and the senior management in connection with any loss or termination
of their offices or appointments.
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The Remuneration Committee met twice during the year ended 29 February 2016
to review and approve the annual performance bonus schemes and the granting
of discretionary bonus to executive Directors and senior management and other
related matters.

The remuneration of the members of senior management of the Company by band
for the year ended 29 February 2016 is set out below:

RBZE2016F2R29B L FER  HTHEES
HETMRERE AR RBEFELAS
B ROEERSREBRASBRHBIEAL
LIk HAbHRSETE -

AP SMEBAENREZ2016%F282908 1
FENFHNSEENT :

999,999 T LL T
7#1,000,0007T E ##51,999,9997T
7#2,000,0007T Z %5 2,999,999 7T
F#53,000,0007T 5 LA £

HKD999,999 or below
HKD1,000,000 to HKD1,999,999
HKD2,000,000 to HKD2,999,999
HKD3,000,000 or above

Nomination Committee
The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include the following:
» To review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;

» To make recommendation to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors;

» To identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members; and
» To assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take into

account various aspects set out in the Board diversity policy, including but not limited

to gender, age, cultural and educational background and professional experience.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the Nomination
Committee would consider the candidate’s character and integrity, qualifications,
experience, time commitment and independence (for appointment of independent
non-executive Director) and other relevant criteria necessary to complement the
corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year ended 29 February 2016. At
the meeting, the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board have been
reviewed and assessed. During the year under review, the Nomination Committee
has also nominated Mr. Chan Lambert Lap Yip and Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella as
additional executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code provision
D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of Directors, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,

the compliance of the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board committee meetings

and the annual general meeting of the Company held during the year ended 29
February 2016 is set out in the table below:

Ms. YAU On Yee, Annie EPRER L

Ms. NG Yi Kum, Estella* h#EE Lzt 212
Mr. CHAN Lambert Lap Yip** FRL ZE S A 313
Mr. LAl Tsz Mo, Lawrence*** b AT i Sl 11
Mr. Erwin Steve HUANG BEEKEE 44
Mr. WANG Guosheng FEIRRSAE 3/4
Mr. CHUI Chi Yun, Robert ESCkE 34
Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael BRI HSEE 3/4
Mr. CHOW Chee Wai, Christopher FEREEE 4/4
Mr. HENG Ching Kuen, Franklin=** Sz JEf 55 4 xeex 23

Remarks:

* Appointed on 15 December 2015
**  Appointed on 24 July 2015

***  Resigned on 1 August 2015

*+%  Resigned on 1 January 2016

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings with the non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) without the
presence of executive Directors during the year.

0/1
11
0/1

EEERME

EESREETEEERTAZTAMIE
D.3.1RFTE B BE -

ESECEMAQNANEEERRERER
EENBIRBHEASERR AR EETE
RREERAENTEHNRERES - BIFREST
AIREEEMES - URARAEBTLEE
ﬁ?ﬂﬂﬁ’ﬂ%iﬁ&ﬁ@iﬁ%%ﬁﬁ&%WE@ﬁEﬁ

EESRZEERENHFERE

MREZE2016F 2809 LFEER  RESHE
EEENEES SR ECSRURAATEH
BRASHWDHERTRET :

- - 11
- - 11
- - 11
212 212 11
12 2/2 11
11 212 11
12 2/2 11
Bt -

* R2015F12H15A EZEF
w2015 75240 EZ AT
o 20154841 H BT
w2016 181 H BT
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 29 February 2016.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory
requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information
as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the
Company’s financial statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The statement of the independent auditors of the Group about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’
Report on pages 72 to 73.

For the year ended 29 February 2016, the remuneration paid/payable to Ernst &
Young, the external auditors of the Group, was approximately HK$2,560,000 for
audit services. No other assurance services fee was paid/payable to Ernst & Young.
The remuneration paid/payable to Ernst & Young network firms were approximately
HK$422,000 for non-assurance services. HK$836,000 was paid/payable to other
audit firms for audit services of subsidiaries of the Group located outside Hong
Kong.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board, through the Audit Committee, is responsible for ensuring that adequate
internal controls are in place to safeguard the Group’s assets and manage risks.
The executive management has been delegated the responsibility of identifying and
evaluating the risks faced by the Group and of designing, operating and monitoring
an effective internal control system.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of operations in achieving the
established corporate objectives, safeguarding the Group’s assets, providing
reliable financial reporting information and complying with the applicable laws and
regulations. Systems and procedures are also established to identify, measure,
manage and control, rather than eliminate, different risks arising from different
business and functional activities.
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The Group’s Internal Audit Department plays an important role in enhancing internal
control system. It assists the Board in determining whether a sound internal control
system is maintained and operated in compliance with the established processes
and standards by performing periodic audits over all major operations of the Group,
under a rotational cycle. An annual audit plan (comprising of annual audit focus
and audit frequencies) is prepared based on the department’s independent risk
assessment. Such work plain is discussed and agreed with the Audit Committee at
the beginning of each financial year. Major internal audit findings will be submitted
to the Audit Committee for review and all recommendations from the Internal Audit
Department will be properly followed up to ensure that they are implemented within
a reasonable period of time.

The Board considers that the internal control system of the Group is effective and
continues to review and update the system to ensure that shareholder’s investments
and the Group’s assets are safeguarded.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Procedures for Shareholders to convene a Special General Meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to the bye-law 58 of the Company’s bye-laws and the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (“Companies Act”) as amended from time to time, registered
Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company (“SGM
Requisitionists”) can deposit a written request to convene a SGM at the registered
office of the Company (“Registered Office”), which is presently situated at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The SGM Requisitionists must
state in their request(s) the purposes of the SGM and such request(s) must be
signed by all the SGM Requisitionists and may consist of several documents in like
form, each signed by one or more of the SGM Requisitionists.

The Share Registrars will verify the SGM Requisitionists’ particulars in the SGM
Requisitionists’ request. Promptly after confirmation from the Share Registrars

that the SGM Requisitionists’ request is in order, the Company Secretary will
arrange with the Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all the
registered Shareholders in accordance with all the relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements. On the contrary, if the SGM Requisitionists’ request is verified not in
order, the SGM Requisitionists will be advised of the outcome and accordingly, a
SGM will not be convened as requested.
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The SGM Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a SGM if within twenty-
one (21) days of the deposit of the SGM Requisitionists’ request, the Board does not
proceed duly to convene a SGM provided that any SGM so convened is held within
three (3) months from the date of the original SGM Requisitionists’ request. A SGM
so convened by the SGM Requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Company.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at a general meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act, either any number of the registered Shareholders
holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company (“Requisitionists”),
or not less than 100 of such registered Shareholders, can request the Company

in writing to (a) give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next general
meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice of
any general meeting any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists may consist of several documents
in like form, each signed by one or more of the Requisitionists; and it must be
deposited at the Registered Office with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s relevant expenses, not less than six weeks before the meeting in case
of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one week before the
meeting in the case of any other requisition. Provided that if an AGM is called for

a date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the requisition
though not deposited within the time required shall be deemed to have been
properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in
writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited
Ground Floor, Block B, Summit Building,

30 Man Yue Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2356 0215

Email: enquiry@tslj.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of
the Company.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s constitutional documents have been posted under the sub-section
‘Constitutional Documents’ of Corporate Governance section on the Company’s
website at www.tslj.com. There are no changes in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the year under review.
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INDEPENDENT

AUDITORS" REPORT

P>
EY:

To the shareholders of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Ernst & Young

22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
(International) Limited (the “Company"”) and its subsidiaries set out on pages 74
to 171, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 29
February 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

BIAZMENRES
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P>
EY:

To the shareholders of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited (continued)
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 29 February 2016, and
of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 May 2016
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BMAEGE BEMTESHELRBEZRAEE
HREMNWERZREZHER -

=R

BPRE ZEREVERRCREEBETHE
REEXEBEEMAAMKE SATAREKE
NER2016F28 298 MBI KM KR BEAQF
FEMBLARBEZZALFENRINE SR
B UHEEBLIAKANEEREZERER -

RAREIF BB
B EE AT

5B
2016%F5H23H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFT OR LOSS sanas

Year ended 29 February 2016
BZE2016F 2290 L FE

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains, net
Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Basic and diluted

ERE
SHERA
EF
HABW AR Y 548
HERDIHE
THRER
KERR
B E R
BRBLAT 2 F
FRiStiEN
REERF
1S ZFIER4

RATHEAA
FEEREIRER

RARERAEESREF

EXRR

Notes

HfEE

1

13

2016
20164
HK$'000 BT T
3,538,862
(1,927,303)

1,611,559
2,134
(1,341,720)
(163,083)

108,890
(62,584)

46,306
(22,493)

23,813

23,623
190

23,813

11.2 cents

2015
20154

HK$'000 j&# T T
3,871,029
(2,072,151)

1,798,878
10,615
(1,511,810)
(175,210)

122,473
(59,543)

62,930
(23,331)

39,599

39,758
(159)

39,599

18.9 cents



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
O COMPREFENSIVE

Year ended 29 February 2016
HZE20165F2829A 1L FE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME

Other comprehensive income/(loss) not
to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent years:

Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined
benefit plan

Income tax effect
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) not

to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent years

Other comprehensive loss to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent years:

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

NGQ M | SA2ERARE

REERF
Hitt2mE (BR) KA

RETARER S EEBERZ
HitZEBA~ (FE)

SRR BB
B (B58)
FrienEE

AETARER S EEBEERZ
HthZmEBA ~ (BE) B8

REARERS EERERZ
Hit2HEEIE :
BEGINER 2 ERER

REFHMPEESE -
HIBRBIE

AEERE (FE) WABE

FEfE ZE R AR
RATRERA
FEEZEIR AR SRS

Note

28

2016
20164
HK$'000 j8# T

23,813

4,601
(759)

3,842

(80,433)

(76,591)

(52,778)

(53,019)
241

(52,778)

2015
20154
HK$'000 88T 7T

39,599

(3,978)
656

(3322)

(3,043)

(6,365)

33,234

33,423
(189)

33,234

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income %4 2E WA Hx
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OrF FINANCIAL POSIHTION seumnnns

At 29 February 2016
FA2016%F2H29H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Other asset

Prepayments and deposits
Time deposits

Deferred tax assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Tax recoverable
Time deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals

Derivative financial instruments

Gold loans

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
Convertible bonds

Finance lease payables

Tax payable

NET CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

FRBEE
W~ BERRE
B EE

Hih &&=

AR EE
EHFR
EIERIREE

RBEE
FE
FEWBRR

BANR - RER AL

A EBIE
EHER
RERBETEEY

RBAE

FEABRR
HAGE SR B & A
PTEERMT A
=EHE
FTRRITRHMER
AR ES
FENREEE
FEfiR

REBEEFE
REERRBRE

Notes

HfEE

14
15
16
19
20
29

17
18
19

20
20

21
22
23
24
25
26
27

2016
20164
HK$'000 BT T

139,441
99

500
43,379
71,429
50,692

305,540

1,607,509
254,642
115,517

7,649
181,891
202,549

2,369,757

(271,633)
(244,471)
(3,648)
(98,849)
(610,925)
(12,500)
(1,632)
(23,967)

(1,267,625)
1,102,132
1,407,672

2015
20154
HK$'000 j&# T T

144,947
99

500
43,326

37,430

226,302

1,766,797
217,256
107,227

7,754
158,247
130,062

2,387,343

(258,460)
(269,969)

(21,073)
(581,435)
(12,500)

(2,464)
(21,896)

(1,167,797)
1,219,546
1,445,848



NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
Convertible bonds

Finance lease payables
Employee benefit obligations
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Issued capital

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on 23 May 2016.

FRBEE

HitENR R ETER

AR IR ES

FEARERE
BERFIER
IEAERIHEE

BEFE
S

RARHER AEEER

EETRA

fEf

FERRRER

ERAE

EEEMN20165F 58 23 B # & I #F A7 ) 2% o

Yau On Yee, Annie BB 1%
Ng Yi Kum, Estella L%

~—— — —

Directors Z&

22
26
27
28
29

30
32

2016
20164
HK$'000 78T 7T

(6,656)
(336,041)
(88)
(17,863)
(16,346)
(376,994)

1,030,678

(52,584)
(978,219)

(1,030,803)
125

(1,030,678)

(6,199)
(305,268)
(1,709)
(21,571)
(16,793)

(351,540)
1,094,308

(52,584)
(1,042,175)

(1,094,759)
451

(1,094,308)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %8 Bt % &
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY sensuns

Year ended 29 February 2016

B E2016F 2290 L FE

At 1 March 2014 RAN14E351A 2,584 123,365 9255 143,006 11807 8600 607,329 1474 1,070,670 (300 1070370
Proft for the year REERA - - - - - - 3758 - 3758 (159) %50
Other compreensive loss KEREMEERE:

for the year:

Exchange differences on BERNSHESER

translation of foreign operations - - - - (3013 - - - (3019 (30) (3043
Remeasurement loss on RERATENER

defined beneft plan, net of tax B8 fkeE - (332) - (332) (332
Total comprehensive income REELENALE

for e year B0y 4% - mm el
Transfer to capital reserves BRZERGE - - (349) = = =
Capitalcontrbution flom KEATHERRRLE

non-controlling sharefolders of a

subsidiary - - - - %
Equity-settled share option DU Bt b e

arrangement 3 - - - - 191 191
Dividends pid BB - o M () (29
Proposed fnal dividend (014/15)  BREBRE 1 - m o Im - -
At 28 February 2015 R201582828H 108,794* 630, 322" ALY 1094759 1,094,308



At1 March 2015 R2015E351R 52,504 123365 17,169 146143 108,79 8600 630322 178 1,094,759 () 1,094,308
Profitfor the year REEEF - - - - - = 168 = 168 19 181
Other comprefensive loss REEEMAERE:
for the year:
Exchange diferences on tanslaion ~ BEEAER 2 ERZE
of foreign operations - - - - (80.484) - - - (80.484) 5 (80433)
Remeasurement gain on defined RERAHENESR
benefit plan, net of tax WA IE5E - - - - - - 38 = 384 = 3842
Total comprehensive oss AEELEFBLE
for theyear - - - - -0 ) uo G
Capitalcontibution from WBAFERERLE
non-controlling shareholders of a
subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 8 8
Dividends paid EIRE - - - - - - (3.59) (1782) (10%31) - (10937)
Proposed final ividend (2015/16) ~ FERRERS 2015116) 1 = = = = = - (5.469) 5460 = = =
At29 February 2016 R2016%2829R 52,584 12335 17,169¢ 146,143 28310¢ 8,600 649,163¢ 5469 1,030,803 (125) 1,030,678
*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$978,219,000 (2015: * HEREBEREARGEMBERRRZGEHES
HK$1,042,175,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. #%978,219,000 jT (20154 : 7 %5 1,042,175,000

JT) °

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity A& H 28 %




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS senenns

Year ended 29 February 2016
BZE2016F 2290 L FE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Interest income

Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation
Equity-settled share option expense
Movements in employee benefit obligations

Provision/(reversal of provision) for
impairment of inventories

Fair value loss on gold loans designated as
at fair value through profit or loss

Fair value loss on derivative financial instruments

Decrease in inventories
Increase in trade receivables

Increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and accruals
Increase in derivative financial liabilities

Cash flows generated from operations
Hong Kong profits tax refunded
Taxes paid other than Hong Kong

Net cash flows generated from
operating activities

REERIBASHE
BREATZAR

R

g =4
FEWA

REWKE  BERDE
HE R

78

DA 2 R
BIRAEBZ2D

815/ (RRER) FEE
TREFE
REARATEETEREZ
ESEEGATEEFSR

FAESRIANATEEFHAE

FEAL
AU AR
BN e R ARG

FETBRFRIE 0, (RL2)
Hit B B E A
FTESRT G /LM
REXBEENRS
EWEEBFIEHR
BB IMEER IR

REXBEEZ
REREFHE

(Rid) /40

Notes

HfEE

2016
20164
HK$'000 BT T

46,306

62,584
(8,423)

139
62,305

893
365

9,627
3,580

177,376
94,151
(42,321)

(20,937)
17,506
(12,412)
68

213,431
138
(33,324)

180,245

2015
20154
HK$'000 j&# T T

62,930

50,543
(3,195)

192
53,366
7,914
506

(11,423)

590

170,423
145,677
(36,831)

(6,788)
(96,628)
67,753

243,606
1,292
(30,687)

214211



CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Increase in time deposits
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of items of property,

plant and equipment
Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from new trade finance

Repayment of trade finance

Proceeds from new bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

New gold loans

Proceeds from new other loan

Repayment of other loan

Capital element of finance lease payments

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Interest element of finance lease payments

Capital contribution from non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary

Net cash flows generated from financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position

Bank overdrafts — secured

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows

RETH BLSHRE
BURAIE
TEHAEFIE A0
BE - MBERREEE 14833
EEYE  MBERFREEE
FrigsE
RETHMACESREFE

METH RAERE
BB ZBMEMSRE
HEBEZRE
HIBRITERMERIE
HERITER
HREEHE

B E A E RS FIE
EEAMER
BMERENROAE D
ENFE

ENRE
BEEEIRNFIZ D
MBARFERRREE

RMETHELE2RERNEFHR
RERREEEY2IENFER
REDzRERAESEEY
INEERDETE  FE
RELZRERASEEY

RERBEESEYPEFIW

FRAEMBARRBERAIIZRER
REEEY 20

RITEZ —HIEA 25

RERERERMYIZ
RERALEEY

2016
20164
HK$'000 & F 7T

8,423
(104,492)
(58,676)

167

(154,578)

9,388
(23,668)
146,704

(107,389)

69,781
9,600
(764
(2,453
(31,670
(10,937
(141)

)
)
)
)

85
58,536
84,203

125,681

(7,335)

202,549

202,549

202,549

3,195
(156,652)
(56,583)

40
(210,000)

(120,003)
204,353
(37,363)

20,483

(12,816)
(2,419)
(32,561)
(17,248)
(103)

38
2,361
6,572

119,390

(281)

125,681

130,062
(4,381)

125,681

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #&8 B &R 8%

81




NOTES TO THE

SINANCIAL STATEMENTS nsmsme

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is located at Ground
Floor, Block B, Summit Building, 30 Man Yue Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture, sale and marketing of
jewellery products and the provision of service.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company is Partner
Logistics Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), and
the ultimate holding company is Blink Technology Limited, which is incorporated
in the BVI, and the ultimate controlling party is Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy (“Mr.
Tommy Tse”).

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

TSL Investment (B.V.l.) Limited® British Virgin HK$1,000
Islands FE#51,0007T
(IIBVIII)
REEZHS
Beijing Qi Li Yun Jewellery Company The People’s Renminbi (“RMB")
Limited*~@ Republic of 20,000,000
I FIERZREFR A 7O China (“PRC”) AK#20,000,0007T
REARKAME
( [E] )
Beijing Qi Li Yun Trading Company PRC RMB3,000,000
Limited*"@ i AK#3,000,0007T

ERENEBERRAF O

100

NAREEER

HEEBKRE (BB BRAR(TAQIT TS
REREFMRIZEREFEAT A4
7] 2 % i ¥t = B& {¥ AAClarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °
BARZEEREEABTBNEAWRIE
A305% El 3 T g KB ith TBEE ©

AEBCIRXEBRDHE  HE  HEK
BEERKRRERRE -

BEERA  REEBE L& B K HPartner
Logistics Limited 3 EBIZER A7) » &=
IR DB R KB E 2 # 55 A BIBlink
Technology Limited » T & & £ I& A + % i
FElgEE o

MEARZEHR
ARABMBAR ZFHBUT ¢

— Investment holding

REER

100 Jewellery retailing
KEZTE

100 Jewellery retailing
KEZE



1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Beijing Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
Company Limited*@

EREHmBRERR AT

Concepts Management (H.K.) Limited

RISERE (F8) ARARA

Excellent Ford Development
Limited (“EF")

BHERERAR ( [BHER] )

Guangzhou Hong Yun Jewellery
Company Limited #~@
BMNBEHREFRQ A e

Guangzhou Tai Yi Trading
Company Limited #@

EMNREEEERAF

Guangzhou Xi Yun Jewellery
Company Limited”~@
EMNEEKRBRRQ A e

Guangzhou Xi Yun Trading
Company Limited*~@

BNEEBRERAT

Guangzhou Xiang Yun Jewellery
Company Limited #*@
BMNEEZHREFRQ A e

PRC
HE

Hong Kong
58

Hong Kong
58

PRC
FEd

PRC

PRC
FE

PRC
I

PRC
FEd

United States
dollars ("US$")
2,000,000

2,000,000% 7T

HK$1

BT

HK$10,000
751£10,0007T

RMB1,000,000
AR%1,000,0007T

HK$8,000,000
7 #58,000,0007T

RMB2,000,000
AR%2,000,0007T

RMB3,000,000
AEK#3,000,0007T

RMB3,000,000
AR3,000,0007T

1

NEAREEER (#)
M B~ F 2 B R ()

RABMBRARZFEOT @ (8)

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Jewellery
manufacturing
and trading

KERERES

Trademarks holding
and investment in
trademarks

FEBERREBR

Jewellery trading

KHEES

Jewellery retailing

KETE

Jewellery trading
KEES

Jewellery retailing

KEZE

Jewellery retailing
and franchising

REZERMBEER

Jewellery trading

KEE5

Notes to the Financial Statements B ##& iz
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NOTES TO THE
AINANCIAL STATEMENTS s mmmamee o

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. DAEREBER (&)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) MEARZER (E)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) KRABMB AR ZFHFBWT :

Impromptus Asia Pacific Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Goldsmith and
By 7 #£10,0007T jewellery trading
EERHKEES
Infinite Assets Corp.@ BVI HK$277,254 100 Investment holding
REEZHS 7B#5277,254 7T REZER
Liberty Mark Limited® BVI Uss$1 100 Investment holding
REEZHS 1% REZER
Richfun Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 Investment holding
LUPEFRAT &8 BT REER
Shanghai Fu Yun Jewellery PRC RMB1,000,000 100 Jewellery retailing
Company Limited*"@ i AFR%1,000,0007T RETE
EERERBERLR
Shanghai Fu Yun Trading PRC RMB3,000,000 100 Jewellery retailing
Company Limited*"@ i AR%3,000,0007T KREZE
EERERERRAT O
Shenzhen Jingyan Jewellery PRC HK$8,000,000 100 Manufacturing
Company Limited?@ R 785£8,000,0007T and distribution
R IBHAREEHERD T of jewellery
Shenzhen Qianhai Tse Sui Luen PRC RMB100,000 100 Jewellery trading
Trading Company Limited* @A ] AE#100,0007T KEZ5
RSB E S BRARY el
Shenzhen Qianhai Tse Sui Luen PRC RMB100,000 100 Logistic and
Logistic Company Limited#" @2 ] AE#100,0007T supply chain
R BTSSR BYR R A 7 ea management

VIR R AR FESR B 22



1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1

RERKEEH (8
M A R 2 BB ()
ARAWBARZFHBOT ¢ (8)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements B ##& iz

Tse Sui Luen Jewellery Company Hong Kong HK$46,982,090 — 100 Jewellery trading
Limited (“TSLJ")# &y 754£46,982,0907T and retailing

HERBHRERRL R KEEZREE

([FHERMEERE | )#

Tse Sui Luen (Guangzhou) Jewellery PRC HK$21,000,000 — 100 Manufacturing,
Company Limited (“TSLGZ") R 75#£21,000,0007T distribution of
(formerly known as “Guangzhou jewellery and
Jingshi Jewellery Company franchising
Limited”)#@ HERE 28K

#Hing (EM) HKEARAT PIEEES)S

(THEmEEMN ) (AREEM
BAKREEHARAR) @

Tse Sui Luen Investment (China) BVI US$6,863 — 100 Investment holding
Limited @ KEELZRS 6,863% 7T REER

#HiLBIRE (FE) BRAFC

Tse Sui Luen Jewellery Retailing Malaysia Malaysian Ringgits — 100 Jewellery retailing
Sdn. Bhd.@ BRFE 2,400,000 KETE

BREZEE
2,400,0007T

Tse Sui Luen (Shenzhen) Jewellery PRC HK$12,500,000 — 100 Manufacturing
Company Limited @ R 7##12,500,0007T and distribution of

HinE ORY) KBEBRAT @ jewellery

Tse Sui Luen (Shenzhen) PRC RMB1,000,000 — 100 Jewellery trading
Trading Limited*@4 HE AER#1,000,0007T KHEES

Hink ORY) BERERQFeA
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NOTES TO THE
AINANCIAL STATEMENTS s mmmamee o

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1L ARAREEEE (&)
MEBARZER(E)

ARABMBAR ZHBUT -

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

TSL Management Services Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Management and
HEBEEREERAE 7 B2 administrative
services
EERITHRE
TSL Jewellery (Export) Company Hong Kong HK$19,824,775 — 100 Jewellery trading
Limited & 7##£19,824,7757¢ and retailing
HILBERE (HO) BRAHE KREZESREE
TSL Jewellery (Macau) Limited® Macau Macau Pataca — 100 Jewellery retailing
TSLERE (RFY) BRAFC pEd| ("MOP") 100,000 HESE
BP9 %5100,0007T
TSL Jewellery (H.K.) Co. Limited Hong Kong HK$42,000,390 — 100 Jewellery retailing
AILBRE (F8) BRAHE Bk 7&#42,000,3907T KEZTE
TSL Manufacturing and Distribution Hong Kong HK$67,000,000 — 100 Investment holding,
Limited (“TSL M&D") 7 7 #£67,000,0007T procurement,
HImBEER D HARA R manufacturing
( MAmBRER D] ) and distribution
of jewellery
REER ~ 5B -
BUER 7 HIRE
TSL Properties Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 — 100 Property holding
A EEEERATE & 7 #1,0007T and investment
BEYERRE
TSLJ Kabushiki Kaisha Japan Japanese Yen — 96.5 Jewellery retailing
("TSLIKK")™@ (note) SN 75,000,000 and wholesales
TSLIMHX &1t 75,000,000 A 7T HRETERME

( [TSLIKK] ) e



2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)
# Unofficial translation

## In addition to the ordinary shares, TSLJ has issued 36,574 deferred shares of
HK$1,000 each

* Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign enterprise

b Registered under the laws of the PRC as limited liability company

ok Registered under the laws of Japan as limited liability company

@ Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst &

Young global network
A Incorporated during the year

Note: During the year, the Group and the non-controlling shareholders of TSLIKK
subscribed additional shares of TSLIKK. A cash consideration of approximately
HK$85,000 was received from the non-controlling shareholders. The Group’s

equity interest in TSLIKK decreased to 96.5% (2015: 97.5%).

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of
the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for derivative financial instruments and gold loans which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of

the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)

for the year ended 29 February 2016. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

21

REREBER (&)
‘ FERXES

** REBRIN 0 AR EC #1736,574
FRBEEL0007T ZIELER -

* REFEEEIMA/IELZE
o REFEZEZREMBEREELT
= REHARNEZREAMBEREELT

e LR ARIFHE BT KSR BB
HEMEZ KEBRRE QR AEX

4 RERMRL

MsE © FR o REBAMTSLIKKKI FEIZER KRR
B ZE AN BR 1D o AR &R @ U BITSLIKKEE 2
BAREA B #8500 TR ENRE - &
& B RTSLIKKAR % F& & 96.5% (2015 :
97.5%) °

EERALERMIEARDBAZHMBERAR
TEYEAFEXEAIBRAEEFEE
TERFOHNAAE - EZARREEMKE
RAZHBREIREBRR -

REEE
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NOTES TO THE
HNANC‘AL STATEMENTS (Continued) PATSERFTMIEE (=)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting
or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests,
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount

of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognizes (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the first time for the
current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The adoption of the above revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial
effect on these financial statements and there have been no significant changes
to the accounting policies applied in these financial statements.

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Seurities (the”Listing Rule”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) issued by the Stock Exchange relating
to the disclosure of financial information with reference to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the current financial year. The main
impact to the financial statements is on the presentation and disclosure of
certain information in the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE
HNANC‘AL STATEMENTS (Continued) PATSERFTMIEE (=)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 2.3

2.3

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have
been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

ERMERERZERBUBHEER

AREEE RN AP B RRRALUT S HEME
RERZH T KRBT BB BRELER

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? BB R EEREN EHTA?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an EEMERSESERNFEIN AREFZLHA
and HKAS 28 (2011) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture* REBGTERE285 BEXAS
(2011) {5 &T A< BERA
ZEEE
4 &5t &
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the EEMBRELAEIN S KREHE .
HKFRS 12 and Consolidation Exception? BB BREERFELNR ERmE
HKAS 28 (2011) kBB G ER 285 HE#HEZ
(2011) B FT A< pISME R
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in BEUMBREER WHEES
Joint Operations! ESNRACHIFN EEERZ
B E
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts? EBMBMEERNEE EEELEKFP?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers? EBMBBRELELNFISE KEEFEY
Z WA
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative? BB ERNSEIRBIAR HEFHMH
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of EBEHERFEIRR BEIES
and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation? BB G ERE38R WER# Y
EET A A
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants? ERSTENEIRER B¥ GZRE
and HKAS 41 BBGERES HIE
(CEIEN
Amendments to HKAS 27 (2011) Equity Method in Separate Financial BBETERE27R BUHBEE
Statements? (2011 F MERT & A2 Bm L
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs! 2012%F 22014 F FH = ZEEE
2012-2014 Cycle FEBK B
B Z & 5T
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 1 O R2016F1ALIB R U EHB 2 ETHA
2
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 2 R2018F1ALIBRUEHBZETHA
2
3 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual financial statements 3 M206FLALIAR 2 EHBEREFEME

BREXKWESBUHHEED AT
BARAREE
W AREEREIEE R B MR TRA

beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not applicable to the Group

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for adoption 4

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of these new AEBECHBMMMERMN LR BB ERE
and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these new and ZAZHBEEE HHREETEHERGT
revised HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of operations or REETNEBTBRELEAEREB 2
financial position. REXBERMBRRNBRERTLE -

)



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event

of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and
liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance
with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as
at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity
interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognized
at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an
asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, the amount recognized for non-controlling interests
and any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognized in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE
HNANC‘AL STATEMENTS (Continued) PATSERFTMIEE (=)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 FTEGTHEHRE (H)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill
as at 28/29 February. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of
the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognized. An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and gold loans at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on

a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax assets and financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent

of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE
HNANC‘AL STATEMENTS (Continued) PATSERFTMIEE (=)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TEBHBEBRE (&)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there
is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss of an asset other
than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates

used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortization) had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that

person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a
parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE
HNANC‘AL STATEMENTS (Continued) PATSERFTMIEE (=)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 FTEGTHEHRE (H)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalized in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognizes such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each
item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings 55 years
Plant and machinery 31to 7 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1to 10 years
Motor vehicles 410 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially
recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic

benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognized is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at
cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the
fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets
are not amortized. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues
to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalized
at the present value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and
financing. Assets held under capitalized finance leases, including prepaid
land lease payments under finance leases, are included in property, plant
and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are
charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic
rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature are
accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over their estimated useful
lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at cost
and subsequently recognized on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the
land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE

HNANC‘AL STATEMENTS (Continued) PATSERFTMIEE (=)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognized initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the
trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment. Amortized
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortization is included in other income and gains in
the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognized
in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in administrative
expenses for receivables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

« the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or
has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement;
and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset
or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what
extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognize the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or

a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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NOTES TO THE
HNANC‘AL STATEMENTS (Continued) PATSERFTMIEE (=)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TEBHBEBRE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset'’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss
increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery
is credited to other expenses in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables and
accruals, derivative financial instruments, gold loans, interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, convertible bonds and finance lease payables.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities
held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held
for trading are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognized in the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition and only if the
criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate
amortization process.
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NOTES TO THE
HNANC‘AL STATEMENTS (Continued) PATSERFTMIEE (=)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 FTEGTHEHRE (HA)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Loans and borrowings (continued)

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium

on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortization is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that
require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognized
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher
of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially
recognized less, when appropriate, cumulative amortization.

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics of a liability is
recognized as a liability in the statement of financial position, net of transaction
costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of the liability component
is determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond;

and this amount is carried as a long term liability on the amortized cost

basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the
proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognized and included
in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs. The carrying amount of

the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the
convertible bonds based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are first recognized.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or canceled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as gold forward contracts
to hedge its gold price risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken
directly to the statement of profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis for homogeneous items while it is
determined on an actual unit cost basis for certain unique or specific items and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labor and an appropriate proportion of overheads, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realizable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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NOTES TO THE
HNANC‘AL STATEMENTS (Continued) PATSERFTMIEE (=)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 FEBHBEBRE (&)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidation statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognized for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase
in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences
at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognized to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred

tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

24 EEESTHERME (&)

FREHR (&
BR T a5 %ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁhEEEﬂﬁw
RIELERIAERE -

e fEHR-—BEABESHIZ 2T
RERBEREERNEGEMELEZE
EBIBEE MEXZBHSTER
FERBANABEIELE K

h %@ﬁ%&EEZﬁEWHE
Bl UREBMEEZEETATEEATR
# R AEEE o

FRETMNBRERIEER « &FRARIER
Bl & ARRABEEE ﬂﬁw%LLﬁﬁé
E-BRTMN MBEEARHRERS
Eﬂ'Tﬁﬁﬁ%%%Wm%Eﬁﬁﬁ
R AFIAARBERD R RAREES
HRADELEHBEE !

s EUEFMEXAHZIXRZPURERE
EjEFﬁEEZEETWﬁﬁh&
ERCEEREEE MEXZHY
E%Eﬂﬁ@ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ@%
2Rk

e HILMBAR HELAARSGE
TZP‘szﬁghﬁ 2EMmME
EﬁhEEEﬁT ETE%%@
’ L/L& El‘féjﬁﬁ nx—rs H‘J’ﬁiiiﬁ
%T EHBECERFERN  THERA
EMIEEE ©

EEBHEEE 2 REENSERSHART
LR - d T B REE EAREREEF A
ERENEELERBEE 2 2B RAF1D -
BB EER HEEREE - R THERDZ
EEBEEENSERS AR TUER
T BE R R 5 B AR B B A A E 4K SR AR B IR
ERIREE 2 2 IR - BT LR -

EEFHEEEREBUTEHNHERRERE
EQREEEBCEHHENE ENRER
REPMARCLERIABRLOEERZH
Z(RBERBEE-

um
>

Notes to the Financial Statements 817§3R#& /M 3E

105




NOTES TO THE
HNANC‘AL STATEMENTS (Continued) PATSERFTMIEE (=)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 FTEGTHEHRE (H)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable
right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Customer loyalty programme

The Group maintains loyalty points programmes within its retail shops in Hong
Kong and PRC, which allow customers to accumulate points award credits
upon purchase of goods in the shops and joining the programmes. The points
award credits can then be redeemed for goods or other gifts, subject to certain
terms and conditions. A portion of the consideration received for the sales
transactions from which points award credits are accrued is allocated to the
points award credits issued which is recognized in the statement of profit or loss
when the points award credits are redeemed or expired.

The consideration allocated to the award credits is measured by reference to
their fair value of goods or gifts exchanged after considering past experience of
redemption, discounted to the present value as appropriate. Such consideration
is not recognized as revenue at the time of the initial sale transaction — but is
deferred and recognized as revenue when the award credits are redeemed and
the Group’s obligations have been fulfilled.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by
applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(c) service income, in the period when services are rendered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized

as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
employees and suppliers. Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby suppliers render
goods or services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7
November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a
binomial valuation model (the “Binomial Model”), further details of which are
given in note 31 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized in employee benefit
expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognized as at
the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account
when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions
attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected
in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award
unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/
or service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognized. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated
as vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an
expense is recognized as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognized for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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NOTES TO THE
HNANC‘AL STATEMENTS (Continued) PATSERFTMIEE (=)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TEBHBEBE (&)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is canceled, it is treated as if it had vested on
the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognized for the award is
recognized immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the employee are not met. However,

if a new award is substituted for the canceled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the canceled and new awards
are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in
the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution
in the computation of earnings per share.

Employee benefits

Salaries

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage and the cost

to the Group of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
discounted and stated at their present value.

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the PRC, Malaysia
and Japan are required to participate in central pension schemes operated

by the local municipal government. Contributions are made based on the
requirements of the respective local municipal government. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension schemes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligations in respect of lump sum long service amounts
payable on cessation of employment in certain circumstances under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method by a qualified
actuary, discounted to its present value, and the fair value of any related plan
assets is deducted. The discount rate is the yield of Exchange Fund Notes at
the end of the reporting period that have maturity dates approximating the terms
of the Group's obligations.

Remeasurements arising from long service payment obligations, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, are recognized immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
profits through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit
liability or asset. The Group recognizes the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation under “cost of sales” and “administrative expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss by function:

e service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains
and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements

e netinterest expense or income

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalized as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalization of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalized. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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NOTES TO THE
HNANC‘AL STATEMENTS (Continued) PATSERFTMIEE (=)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 FEGTHEHRE (H)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate allocation
of retained profits within the equity section of the statement of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they
are recognized as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company'’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at

the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or profit

or loss is also recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries located other than Hong Kong
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of
a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair
value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management

to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation
charges of its property, plant and equipment. These estimates are based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. The Group will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, and will write off

or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives. Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives and therefore
depreciation charge in the future periods.
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NOTES TO THE

HNANC‘AL STATEMENTS (Continued) PATSERFTMIEE (=)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all
non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible
assets are tested for impairment annually and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating

unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less
costs of disposal is based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilized. Significant judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognized, based upon estimate and the level of future
taxable profits. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to recognized
tax losses at 29 February 2016 was HK$22,385,000 (2015: HK$14,278,000).
The amount of unrecognized deferred tax assets relating to tax losses at 29
February 2016 was HK$10,272,000 (2015: HK$12,137,000). Further details are
contained in note 29 to the financial statements.

Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and variable selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.

It could change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste and
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycle. The directors reassess
the estimations at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group determines the impairment of trade receivables based on an
assessment of the recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is based
on the credit history of the customers and other debtors and the current market
condition. The directors reassess the recoverability at the end of each reporting
period.

TESFMGEEF (&)
FMBEERE

AEEREBFERTHEHIMBEER
AEERARENR EEERFH&E
FEESFIHERETREETRER
%ﬁ °Ef&#ﬂﬁi§ﬁ§3@ﬁﬂ%%§ﬁf\ﬂ§ﬁﬁ
BEWNERFETHENR - MEER
IE%FE 2 IREEBAE A INE 5
(BEATEBARLEERFEEFAERZ
BeE) EFEERE AFEBERELEE
RATZREUEENATFRARZHAN
ROAZHEHERG B %}F'S?,—JEE;‘?:F‘EF?D
MEEEEZEERAGE -BEStEFEA
BER - mf@@ﬁfﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂlﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
SELEBUNZARAREBESHRE REEEE
WITRERUGTTEZEREREZHE -

EERBEE

FEAEDABESEYERIAIE
HEEE MUERBRERAT T
BIIZEEAR EEJFRAZEL
HEEZSHEIRBERRERBER
ZHEFRESEMELEERHALEH - R
2016 F2H29H EHARNKEEENE
EREBEEEREES %*"2238500075
(2015 £ : 7 # 14,278,000 7T) ° A 2016 &
2298 ABEREEHEEENHEBAR
%518 A58 510,272,000 7T (20154 : 8 #
12¢37,0007‘c) o H i 5 15 1A B 75 3R R B
29 o

2
1]
&

fi

ET%\
&

:m;\ QIII’

rN

FECURRFE
FENAERFEDNAEERBERE
1 B9 £ 565 EDRL 5 £ 3T 52 BB IR T 4

ERMX WS NRBREH R RRE
&&’EE"”;EMEWE'JLﬁ%%%“ﬁWFHj :
VTERBEFRRRBZIHFRBIZITE
BHAEENTEIMAERZL -EER
BFEFRAEHMFERBAMT -

FE W2 B KR (B

7N £2 [ 4% BR PR W BR AR B9 AT W B 15 O AT A
HRIEEWIRS 1’Et|j}§§1ﬁ Lt 15 & (4 T3 4R
BErFRAMEBRRAEBEICRLCHEUR
E%%,REE ESNEBFFRAEHNF



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
Customer loyalty programmes

The Group measures the cost of the loyalty award credits by reference to the
fair value of goods and gifts redeemed in the prior years and the probability
of redemption is estimated by the directors based on past experience. Actual
results may differ from the estimation.

Income tax

Significant judgements on the future tax treatment of certain transactions are
required in determining income tax provisions. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are recorded accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in circumstances and tax legislation.

Equity-settled share option expenses

The fair value of the share options granted to certain directors, employees

and service providers determined at the date of grant of the respective share
options is expensed over the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment
to the Group’s share option reserve. In assessing the fair value of the share
options, the Binomial Model was used. The Binomial Model is one of the
generally accepted methodologies used to calculate the fair value of the share
options. The Binomial Model requires the input of subjective assumptions,
including the expected dividend yield and expected life of options. Any changes
in these assumptions can significantly affect the estimate of the fair value of the
share options.
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NOTES TO THE
HNANC‘AL STATEMENTS (Continued) PATSERFTMIEE (=)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REFIWER

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based MEEMS AEEDNREBEEE 5

on business nature and has three reportable operating segments as follows: BEN UE=ZFA2H/REE2HPNOT ¢

(@) Retail Business (including Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China and () ZEXB(BEEE - BM - PEAH
Malaysia); RERAER) ;

(b) Wholesale Business; and (b) #BEXEK K

(c) Other Businesses. (c) HAnzR -

Retail Business includes direct retail sale of jewellery products to end ZEXBEELHMBTSLHHEBEE 2

consumers through the physical outlets carrying the trademark of EREHSEHETHEECKEER -

TSL|3#E 8. It also includes the service fee income received from provision of B ’J‘f\@?ﬁiﬂ TETERBETFTHMEE

retail management services to other retailers. & T U B 2 BR A U A o

Wholesale Business includes wholesale sale of jewellery products to HBEKEBEMEHREERTER -

customers.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments EEERAEBLE 5 Z &l Bl 2 & 1F

separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation HEE  UMEFHERIMEFFEREZR

and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on KopEERBETDZRT 2 ‘E‘B & %U/(JE?

reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) BIETHMG NFELRABNBRBEAE

before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently with MR LABRNBRBRARF (B

the Group’s profit before tax except that finance costs and income tax expense B2 EFNEAEBRBEABATES

are excluded from such measurement. N—Z EHBEARAEHERAATE

BEEAEHEES -

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets and tax recoverable as these PHEETEBRELEHEEERTREH

assets are managed on a group basis. B ZEEERYHRALAEESR—E®E -

Segment liabilities exclude gold loans, derivative financial instruments, interest- THEEFERESHE  T4emI

bearing bank and other borrowings, convertible bonds, tax payable, deferred B FERTREMER  AaRES

tax liabilities, finance lease payables, and employee benefit obligations as these BARE EEHESE  EBE/ME *ﬂ‘ﬁ

liabilities are managed on a group basis. REERANEYR  ZZEEBEYHAEER

— -’—";-="' IE °
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling NEHEREZEDRBHETFE=E2E

prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing market prices. 1“1’!53’% AmE -



4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Year ended 29 February 2016

Segment revenue:
Sales to external customers
Other revenue

Segment results

Reconciliation:
Finance costs
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Segment assets:

Reconciliation:
Deferred tax assets
Tax recoverable

Total assets

Segment liabilities:

Reconciliation:
Derivative financial instruments
Gold loans

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings

Convertible bonds

Tax payable

Deferred tax liabilities
Finance lease payables
Employee benefit obligations

Total liabilities
Other segment information:

Depreciation
Capital expenditure*

BZEN6F280RILFE

DEWERE
HERETIREF
HitrgA

SR

8w
HHER
FaBER

KREERF

AHEE
7 -
EEBIRRE
AREHE

REE

ABEME:

P
FIESMTA
ESHE
AERITR

AtER
ARRES
FEfS5E
EERIESE
ENRERS
EERENZR
BnefE

Hitn BEH -

ik
BAmEX

Retail
Business

TERY
HK$'000
BETT

3,113,835
33,205

3,147,040

101,176

2,440,945

(444,629)

62,158
58,649

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment.

4. RESBER (H)

Wholesale
Business

HBRR
HK$'000
BETT

362,027

362,027

21,324

108,634

(75,749)

13
21

*

~ Other
Businesses

AR
HK$'000
BETT

29,795

29,795

(13610)

67,317

(2:382)

134

Total
@t
HK$'000
BRI

3,505,657
33,205

3,538,862
108,890

(62,584)
(22499)

23813
2,616,956

50,692
7,649

2,675,297
(522,760)

(3648)
(98,849)

(1,644,619)

62,305
58,676

BARXBEFBEYE BMERRE -
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4 REHBER (H)

Year ended 28 February 2015 BENBLF2ABALEE
Segment revenue: AEEER
Sales to external customers HEREFHREF 3,627,801 217,903 7,305 3,853,009
Other revenue Hitg A 18,020 — — 18,020
3,645,821 217,903 7,305 3,871,029
Segment results DEEE 118,119 12,618 (8,264) 122473
Reconciliation: Fi
Finance costs BHER (59,543)
Income tax expense FEHER (23331)
Profit for the year KEERF 39,599
Segment assets: PHREE : 2,460,855 89,487 18,119 2,568,461
Reconciliation: i
Deferred tax assets EEHEEE 37,430
Tax recoverable AREHE 7,754
Total assets HERE 2,613,645
Segment liabilities: PHEE: (465,841) (65,355) (3432) (534,628)
Reconciliation: Fil i
Gold loans E4HE (21,073)
Interest-bearing bank and FERTR
other borrowings HinEX (581,435)
Convertible bonds ARRES (317,768)
Tax payable PEAHE (21,896)
Deferred tax liabilities EESERE (16,793)
Finance lease payables EARERE (4.173)
Employee benefit obligations EERNZH (21,571)
Total liabilties BaE (1519,337)
Other segment information: Hitn 7 HEH
Depreciation nE 52,964 3 399 53,366
Capital expenditure* BERHER 60,803 4 = 60,807

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment.

* BRHXBREAENE BERRME -



4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, REDWER (F)
(a) Geographical information () HEER
Revenue from external customers IKEFEFEE
2016
20164
HK$'000 8% F T
Hong Kong and Macau BBREM 1,695,532 2,241,641
Mainland China AR El A it 1,795,801 1,582,999
Other countries HbE=R 47,529 46,389
3,538,862 3,871,029

The revenue information above is based on the location of the customers.

Non-current assets

Hong Kong and Macau BB RIEM
Mainland China REIA
Other countries HAhE xR

The non-current asset information above is based on the location of the
assets and excludes rental deposits, time deposits and deferred tax assets.

(b) Information about major customers (b)
The turnover from the Group's largest customer amounted to less than
10% of the Group'’s total turnover for the current and prior years.

FHREXFERDEEFMEBLES

fj\ °
FREEE
2016
20165
HK$'000 &% T 7t
107,138 104,136
36,128 39,602
2,837 5,101
146,103 148,839

LR EEER N REEFRE i
BED UTEEHERS  EHF
RREEBHEE °

EREZEREFZER
RAEAFERNAFE  REXEER
REFZEXBASEAZEEEY
DR10%
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5. TURNOVER 5 EEMH
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture, sale and marketing AEBNETEZEK2RE  HE EEXK
of jewellery products and the provision of service. Turnover represents the EEMRREMHRE - EXBEANMBRIZEES
sales value of jewellery products sold to customers, net of value added tax and R AEETEFZ2KEGMHNEE
discount, and service income. An analysis of turnover is as follows: F{E ZFERRBYA - EXEEZzL W
2016
20164
HK$'000 BT 7T
Sales of jewellery products HEXREEE 3,505,657 3,853,009
Service income BRASUIA 33,205 18,020
3,538,862 3,871,029
OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET H g AR Wz 8
2016
20164
HK$'000 BT 7T
Interest income FIE 8,423 3,195
Foreign exchange differences, net EEHE% 4,502 (1,648)
Government grant* R R BE* 1,759 1,342
Fair value loss on gold loans designated as EE B AFEBEIEREZ
at fair value through profit or loss ESHENAFEEFERER (9,627) (590)
Fair value loss on derivative financial TSI AENA L EBETEE
instruments (3,580) —
Others Hity 657 8,316
2,134 10,615
*  This represents subsidies from municipal governments in Mainland China. There are * WREBRPER T BRFRMOHE &

no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these subsidies. LSRRI AR R BEMREIT 25 -



7.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Cost of goods sold*

Provision/(reversal of provision) for
impairment of inventories

Depreciation

Minimum lease payments in respect of
operating leases**

Auditors’ remuneration

Employee benefit expense (including
directors’ remuneration (note 9)):

Wages, salaries and other benefits
Equity-settled share option expense
Pension scheme contributions***
Employee benefit obligations (note 28)

Equity-settled share option expense
to service providers

Fair value loss on gold loans designated as
at fair value through profit or loss****

Fair value loss on derivative financial
instruments****

Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

SHE A

BE(BREE) FEE
ARRFE

e
RERE 2 REBEFTR

RN &

BERFIX (BEEZHE
(By=E9)) -
TE  HFERAMEF
URERE 2 BREER
TEREHRRIAGT B R
BERMZET (HFE28)

RAGIRIS R IR
FHZBREER

EEREAFEETERERZ
BERHEN A FEEFEE

PTEEBT AN AP EEFEHE

BEWF BERRMBER
2R

BB A B A

AEBZBRBABFEHER(FEA) !

2016
20164
HK$'000 &% T 7T

1,926,938

365
62,305

207,467
2,560

580,206

9,556
1,273

591,035

9,627

3,580

139

2,083,574

(11,423)
53,366

229,493
2,480

609,135
7,410
9,711

810

627,066

504

590

192
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NOTES TO THE
HNANC‘AL STATEMENTS (Continued) PATSERFTMIEE (=)

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 7. BBARA (8

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting) (continued): AEEZBRBARFTHR(GTA) (#)

*  Cost of goods sold includes HK$94,918,000 (2015: HK$112,080,000) relating to * SHERAK R EE A H B 94,918,000 5T
employee benefit expense, depreciation, and operating lease payments, which are (20154 : 7% % 112,080,000 7T ) BV & & %8 F
also included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above for each of By ERLLHESEER EELESC
these types of expenses. DEIRAU LSS EEERIZ P -

*  Not including commission payments in relation to sales counters in department stores = AEEIXNTHESEMHBENAEELR
and shopping malls. BENAES -

** At 29 February 2016, there were no forfeited contributions available to the Group to ok E*‘ZOleF 2B29H » AEBMIED KW fé‘—i
reduce its contributions to pension scheme in future years (2015: Nil). XA O OR R 2R FOE MR K E‘f 2l it &

(2015¢ DfE) o

*++ These amounts are included in “Other income and gains, net” in the consolidated ok REBERETEMRARKRZFEIPE
statement of profit or loss. The purpose of the above gold loans and derivative BelteE LMELHERTESRMT
financial instruments entered into by the Group is to manage the Group’s gold price BEEAREEAKEZESERRAR - 2%
exposure. Such loans and contracts did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. HERGHNUERFEEAGHERE GG -

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HKEA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBEERZIMUT ¢

2016

20164

HK$'000 /8% T T

Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and RITER > BEXREMERNFIE

other loans 16,419 18,879
Interest on convertible bonds AR ESNFIE 43,273 39,379
Interest on finance leases RERENFE 141 103
Interest on gold loans ELHENFE 2,751 1,182

62,584 59,543



9.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules,
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

Fees we

Other emoluments: HAhZEN
Salaries and allowances Fre k2R
Performance related bonuses BRIFAER 2 FEAL
Equity-settled share option expense DREEE 2 BREER
Pension scheme contributions EEMTGRIRGT B

Included in the directors’ remuneration were fees of HK$1,335,000 (2015:
HK$1,440,000) and HK$345,000 (2015: Nil) paid to independent non-executive
directors and non-executive director respectively during the year.

EEBS
RELEHHE - FEQTEHIEI83L)(a)

b)) ROMBARABD(REESNHE

BORE  AFEE2ESHERENT :

2016
20164
HK$'000 8% T 7t
1,680 1,440
6,705 6,172
= 1,490
268 2,738
45 34
7,018 10,434
8,698 11,874

EEMEeEBRRFAINTFBELENT
EENIFTESESNRESOR A B
1,335,000 7T (20154 : & #51,440,0007T) &
7 #£345,0007T (2015 © #&) ©
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9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

2016

Executive directors:
Yau On Yee, Annie
Ng Yi Kum, Estella*
Chan Lambert Lap Yip?
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence®

Non-executive directors:
Erwin Steve Huang*
Wang Guosheng
Chow Chee Wai, Christopher*
Chui Chi Yun, Robert*
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin®
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael*

2016

HOHE
T
85
DS
273

HUTES:

5K
£

Bh
g5t
sERs
Rt

Fees

i3
HK$000
BRI

345

345
345
300
345

1,680
1,680

Salaries and
allowances

FEREN
HKS000
BRI

3,398

854
1433
1,020

6,705

6,705

9. EEME (H)

Performance
related
bonuses
SRR
REZIA
HK$'000
AETRL

Equity- settled
share option
expense

NiREsE
BREER

HK$'000
BRI

588

o2
(129

268

268

Pension
scheme
contributions

R
RIS
HKS$000
BRI

il
il

4

4

Total

a%
HK$'000
BRI

4004
859
2416
(261)

7,018

345

345
345
300
345

1,680
8,698



DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

215

Executive directors:
Yau On Yee, Annie
Erwin Steve Huang
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence

Non-executive directors:
\Wang Guosheng
Chow Chee Wai, Christopher*
Chui Chi Yun, Robert*
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin*
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael*

1.

2015
2.
3.
4.

2015
5.

1 January 2016

2015

Hi7Es:

BZE
BEX
21K

FUTES

IEE
Eyelu
-
Eq3 4
Ribtx

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Erwin Steve Huang was re-designated as a non-executive director on 1 March

360
360
360
360

1,440

1,440

Mr. Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence resigned as an Executive director on 1 August 2015

3423
1134
1615

6,172

6,172

Mr. Chan Lambert Lap Yip was appointed as an Executive director on 24 July 2015

Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella was appointed as an Executive director on 15 December

Mr. Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin resigned as an independent non-executive director on

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive
directors during the year (2015: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive

any remuneration during the year (2015: Nil).

EsME (&)

1080 636 i 5156
10 1051 - 2295
30 1051 i 2983

1490 2738 U 10434
- - - 360
- - - 30
- - - 30
- - - 30
- - - 1440

1490 273 U 1874

O BNHPITES

1. M2015F3B1BEBEEXKELEBZRALRD
AEHITES -

2. R2015F7TA24BMULELERZEAER
APITES

3. M2015F8B1ARFTHREERIARQTH
TES -

4. R205F12B15EEBELLEZEAR
NEHITES -

5. MR2016F1B1AFEEREEREIARQTN
HITEE -

FRATEEMHNESESFBLIEDTES
(2015%F: &) o

FRAESTETVTARESRDERER
1] B & 49 22 BE (20155 1 &) o
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10 TEGEEFHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included three directors (2015: FRAEELERSTFMNEEBEIR
three), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of the (2015F 3R EE > HF A EREAR
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2015: two) non-director, highest LUFfEE9 o REEHER2E (201551 25)
paid employees are as follows: BeyMEESEEFAMSERNT :
2016
20164F
HK$'000 B# T 7T
Salaries and allowances ek 3,824 3,934
Performance related bonuses EAR I AR 2 FEAL 500 903
Equity-settled share option expense DREEE 2 BRESE R — 1,839
Pension scheme contributions SEEMFGRIRET IR 18 35
4,342 6,711
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration fell MENFUTHNZESTFMFEESES
within the following bands is as follows: ZAEMT
2016
2016
Number of
employees
EEAH
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 782,000,001t 78 #£2,500,0007T 2 —
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 7B#52 500,001 7T 2 % #£3,000,0007T = 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 7#3,000,001 7T £ % #53,500,0007T = =
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 713,500,001t &8 #£4,000,0007T — 1
2 2
No emolument was paid by the Group to any top five highest paid individuals as FAREEHMERTTEEESHHNEES
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of B & (20155 : &) - (ERBIEBRWMARE

office during the year (2015: Nil). MAKREERZME  RIERBBEE



11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FEHEAR
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on ERNEGHRIORBRBEAFERRE B 245
the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on FERBL B A - 1218 A 2%£16.5% (20155 :
profits assessable other than Hong Kong have been calculated at the rates of 16.5%) 5T & - KRERBEBUNKE 2R

tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

2016
20164
HK$'000 BT 7T
Current — Hong Kong RE — BB
Charge for the year FRHIE 310
Underprovision/(overprovision) BEFEREBIR (BERE)
in prior years 1,353
Current — Other than Hong Kong RE — BB
Charge for the year FABIE 34,042
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETE 308
Deferred (note 29) EE (Ff=E29) (13,520)

22,493

BRENAIZEREEEAR R ERE -

83

(757)

35,180

(11,175)

23,331
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NOTES TO THE
HNANC‘AL STATEMENTS (Continued) PATSERFTMIEE (=)

11.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11. FreBiER (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the BRAQNARFTEMBLARMEEERE 2
statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of EEBEHELBERARKRBRART BB
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as BRMOT :
follows:
2016
20165
HK$'000 B# T 7T
Profit before tax BRBE AT E R 46,306 62,930
Tax at the statutory rate BEAERE 17,398 21,186
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the BRAEERPEIRLZ
distributable profits of the Group’s PRC Ffi 8 2 B 2 BT 23 Ik B 5%
subsidiaries STETEMEHNBEEE — (9,865)
Profits entitled to tax exemption HehiE B (40) —
Expenses not deductible for tax FRHNB 2 7,610 9,957
Income not subject to tax IBHBLZ A (87) (273)
Tax losses utilized from previous periods E AR 2 BE R (2,130) (166)
Tax losses and temporary differences REABEGERERER
not recognized 3,899 3,250
Temporary difference recognized in BRULHENERER
respect of previous period (5,818) 1)
Adjustments in respect of current tax T EA R = B E AR AR
of previous periods 1,661 (757)

Tax charge at the Group's effective rate RANEE 48 6N B EBI R
of 48.6% (2015: 37.1%) (20154 : 37.1%) HEZHIE 22,493 23,331



12. DIVIDENDS 2. BRE
2016
20165
HK$'000 &#E T 7T
Interim dividend of HK$0.015 PHIREBREBERER0.0157T
(2015: HK$0.012) per ordinary (2015% : #&#0.0127T)
share paid 3,155 2,524
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.026 RRRER E SR E B ER0.026 7T
(2015: HK$0.037) per ordinary share (2015% : j&#0.0377T) 5,469 7,782
8,624 10,306
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the AEERKECABREEFARLIARNE
Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting and has BROZBRRBFASLREFREHR
not been recognized as a liability at the end of the reporting period. B BUARBREHARERRBEE -

13.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 13.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$23,623,000 (2015:
HK$39,758,000), and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
210,336,221 (2015: 210,336,221) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amounts
presented for the years ended 29 February 2016 and 28 February 2015 in
respect of a dilution as the impact of the share options and convertible bonds
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share amounts
presented.

RAREREARESRAR

EREABANSCHEDNEBRERNALTANES
A FE 15 B R 38 ¥ 23,623,000 Jt (20154 :
B #E39,758,000t) R FRE BHITEBER
2 HnAE T 19 R £0210,336,221 % (20154 :
210,336,221 0% )5t & o

HRAEEBRTHERERTERRESA
EREBENME HMEFHEHZ20165F248
29 2015228 It FE 2 ERER
BRAMEHFAZ -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 YE - BERREE
Furniture,
Land and Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total
&
THRET BER#E EEVE RE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB AETR BETT BB BRI
As at 29 February 2016 R01652A298
As at 28 February 2015 and #20155228B R
1 March 2015: 2015%381H :
Cost KA 95,188 18,303 486,126 6,254 605,871
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (39,696) (145670) (401,595) (4.963) (460,924)
Net carrying amount REFE 55,492 3633 84,531 1201 144,047
At 1 March 2015, net of accumulated W2015%3A1A
depreciation NREHE 55,492 3633 84,531 1201 144947
Additions nE - 1,820 54430 2,426 58,676
Disposals 28 - (114) (181) ) (306)
Depreciation provided during the year FRRERE (1.814) (1,469) (58,156) (866) (62,305)
Exchange realignment EiAR - (176) (1,389) ©) (157)
At 29 February 2016, net of accumulated 2016525298 -
depreciation NRZEHTE 53,678 3694 79,3 2,834 139,441
At 29 February 2016: 1#2016%2A29A :
Cost KA 95,188 18,801 464,457 8,055 586,501
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (41,510) (15,107) (385,222) (5.221) (447,060)

Net carrying amount REFE 53,678 3,604 79,235 2834 139441



14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14 ME -BERREE (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements B ##& iz

As at 28 February 2015 M2015%2A28A

As at 1 March 2014: M201453A1A :

Cost A 95,188 17,153 490,482 6,129 608,952

Accumulated depreciation ZotE (37,882) (13,846) (414,982) (4,315) (471,025)

Net carrying amount REFE 57,306 3307 75,500 1814 137927

At 1 March 2014, net of accumulated M201453818

depreciation NREitTE 57306 3307 75,500 1814 137,927 129

Additions AE - 2308 58,374 12 60,807

Disposals RE - (106) (126) - (23)

Depreciation provided during the year FRITERE (1,814) (1,876) (49,028) (648) (53,366)

Exchange realignment ENHZ - - (189) - (189)

At 28 February 2015, net of accumulated R2015%2728H -

depreciation NREHTE 55,492 3633 84531 1201 144947

At 28 February 2015; M201552H 288 :

Cost B 95,188 18,303 486,126 6,254 605,871

Accumulated depreciation ZotnE (39,696) (14,670) (401,5%5) (4.963) (460,924)

Net carrying amount REFE 55,492 3,633 845531 1291 144,947
During the year ended 28 February 2015, additions to the Group's furniture, M2015F2H28H » UmEHE g~
fixtures and equipment financed by new leases were HK$4,224,000. As at 29 R HBREZER B 4,224,000 ©
February 2016, the carrying amount of the furniture, fixtures and equipment M2016F 28298 LI EHER B 2K
and motor vehicles held under finance leases of the Group amounted to M -HERZERAENREBENBE
HK$2,041,000 (2015: HK$5,817,000). 2,041,0007T (20155 : /& #£5,817,0007T) °
As at the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s buildings were RELE  AKREETRFEMFEMUR
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (note 34(a)). BAREBEE TRITMERE (MF34()) °
At the end of the reporting period, the premises permits in respect of the REFEB > PEAHAEERE BB R
property interests held under long term leases in Mainland China have not been rEBEFEBEENYEEZREERMN
issued by the relevant PRC government authority. The net carrying amount of BREE AEBENZEVERFEBANE

the properties was HK$2 (2015: HK$2) at the end of the reporting period. HFE B B2 (20155 B#E27T) °
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16.

17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15 BEEE
2016
20164
HK$'000 /8% T 7T
Cost 99 99
The Group's trademarks of HK$99,000 (2015: HK$99,000) as at 29 February AEBEZEHER2016F2[290 HB M
2016 are assessed as having indefinite useful life because the Group is able to 99,0007t (20154 : & #£99,0007T) » A
renew the legal right of the trademarks at insignificant cost indefinitely. B LUNRE ST B AR AT AR A
BHERE BMEITAEERERFESR -
OTHER ASSET HitbEE
2016
20164
HK$'000 B¥ T T
Cost of membership for a seat at SIREE FIBFERE
The Chinese Gold and Silver
Exchange Society 500 500
The above other asset was stated at cost less any impairment losses. i E A E TR AR R ORE R R B BR
INVENTORIES 17. #&
2016
20164
HK$'000 B¥ T 7T
Raw materials AR 125,445 95,797
Work in progress EER 66,556 47,505
Finished goods B M 1,415,508 1,623,495

1,607,509 1,766,797



18. TRADE RECEIVABLES

FE UK BR =X

2016
20164
HK$'000 8% T 7T

Trade receivables FEUR BR R

The Group's retail sales are normally made on cash basis. Credit card
receivables from financial institutions in respect of retail sales are aged within
one month. Apart from retail customers, the Group allows an average credit
period from 30 to 90 days to other customers. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimize credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing in
general.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the invoice date and net of provisions, is as follows:

254,642 217,256

FEENZEHE-—RUARERH -FHE
EHEMS  RAUBEBZ2ERERERF
RAZIRRIONR—ER - BREEFFI
AEBEEHEAMEFRHEFIF0E0K 2 5
E-EHE REE N RBBFEGRKE 2 EY

RUBEEERRE -ANEHRAEERE
EHM’EHﬂ%Bﬁ 985 A AN B2 (B Y B W AR SRR
BABDHZEF HABERERNE
B o AN E B E B H R WORK A R
B T 96 37 2 2 M T A SR S B o
R -—REIBRE -

REBEEHR  BRERBRBEZZAMTE
RNGBERABEZREINOT -

2016
20164
HK$'000 8% T 7T

Within 1 month HEBA R

1 to 2 months 1228 R
2 to 3 months 2Z3EAA
Over 3 months HBiB3EA
Total trade receivables A FE IR BR FR

The aged analysis of the trade receivables net of provisions at the end of the
reporting period, is as follows:

234,656 202,965
9,177 6,715
2,784 423
8,025 7,153

254,642 217,256

RBEHR  BURFBRBEIMAFTER
MEEABREZREONAOT :

2016
20164
HK$'000 &% T 7T

Neither past due nor impaired KRBT RAERE
Less than 6 months past due B AGME B
Over 6 months past due BIHARB6ME A

197,073 189,163
55,268 26,611
2,301 1,482

254,642 217,256
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 18.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large number of
diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables net of provisions are
denominated in the following currencies:

2016
20164
HK$'000 8% T T

RMB AR#
Us$ =7
Others Hith

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS, AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

PR (4)

KA RBEZ BWERS R K8 D B
ZEFP RERFPINIEENESE -

CEafENRREZBERRS R RS A
AEEREERERZLHEZ2BURE - R
BBESR ARAEERHR  EANZ
EERFHEMBERE HEEEERMY
BEAZPALABRDEER/T2HRE -

AEEEW IR RE B A < RmE (E
THEBREN

6,542 4,979
239,375 211,575
8,663 672
62 30
254,642 217,256

AR - REREMERK

2016
20164
HK$'000 8Tt

Prepayments SEEREN

Deposits b

Other receivables H A FERER

Long-term prepayments and deposits PERIRBEEZ
classified as non-current assets REPFEMNREEZS

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets
included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no
recent history of default.

61,960 73,547
85,605 73,570
11,331 3,436

158,896 150,553
(43,379) (43,326)
115517 107,227

L EEBREAR T ERE - EHMARN
DBREECRILHLBENE L 2 BWER

=)
oo



20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME DEPOSITS 20.

Cash and bank balances
Time deposits

Less: Time deposits with original maturity
greater than three months, but
less than one year when acquired

Less: Pledged time deposits for certain
short-term banking facilities
Current portion

Less: Pledged time deposits for certain
banking facilities with original
maturity greater than one year
— non-current portion

Cash and cash equivalents

BERBTER
EHFR

B EREZBASR=EAELIR-F
EHER

W ERE T EERTRE RS DERES
7%
RBHH

B ERETRITBERE 2B ERED
AZR—F2EHER — FEREBHBH

RERREEEY

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents and time
deposits of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$346,577,000
(2015: HK$251,363,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s rules and regulations on Foreign Exchange
Administration, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorized to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and
one year depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default.

As at 29 February 2016, the Group's time deposits denominated in RMB
amounting to HK$233,796,000 (2015: HK$153,817,000) have been pledged to
secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group (note 34(b) and (c)).

ReRESEEYREHERN
2016
20164
HK$'000 ;& F 7T
202,549 130,062
253,320 158,247
455,869 288,309
(19,524) (4,430)
(162,367) (153,817)
(181,891) (158,247)
(71,429) —
202,549 130,062

RBEEHPR  AEBEUARBERENMZ
RERASFEURERFROR/BE
346,577,000 7T (2015 £F : % # 251,363,000
) c ARBMTRARGBAEHMER R
i REPE AU 2 SNEERRAG - ARE
EEEEBEREETHIEXSE ZRITH
ARBHBABAMER -

FRRRIT2ASESHRTERZZH
MERRAE - RFAEENNBREF
R -EHERERZERARLIRELSE
WIZ BB E A A RIS - SRITAE
BREAFRIFAREERFEMHL
BENLHEZRT -

B 1E2016F 28290 - AEBEUARB A
B8 {y A8 & A 78 ¥ 233,796,000 JT (2015 4 :
75 #153,817,0007t) 2 EHAFE R E EER
LX?M%Z&KE%%ﬁﬁﬁf%ﬁ(ﬁﬁf%(b)&
(€)) °
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21. TRADE PAYABLES 21 R
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting period, RIEBRKR BHIRIBREZZAHTE
based on the invoice date, is as follows: ZIRBROMAT ¢
2016
20164
HK$'000 BT 7T
Within 1 month 1@ AR 77,969 78,266
1 to 2 months 1Z2 AR 73,069 40,499
2 to 3 months 2E3EAR R 37,419 42,091
Over 3 months BiB3MEA 83,176 97,604
271,633 258,460
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing. ENEZYARE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are denominated in the z|: EEENRRCEEEUTIERAE

following currencies:

2016
20164
HK$'000 8% T T

7,064 42,795
RMB AE';‘%% 123,684 72,807
uss$ ES 139,101 142,680
Others Hith 1,784 178

271,633 258,460



22. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

22.

HittENRRETER

2016
20164
HK$'000 8% T 7T

Other payables HthFEFR

Customer deposits B

Provision for liabilities EERE

Accruals EstEA

Other payables and accruals classified PERHFRB 2 EMEMARR
as non-current EEtEA

Other payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing.

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Liabilities 8E&
Gold forward contracts ESRHAEH

The gold forward contracts are stated at their fair values.

As at 29 February 2016, the aggregate contractual amount of the gold forward
contracts was HK$25,186,000 (2015: Nil).

The purpose of the above contracts entered into by the Group is to manage the
Group's risk arising from volatility of gold prices. Such contracts did not meet
the criteria for hedge accounting.

23.

42,882
81,877
12,372
113,996

251,127

(6,656)

244,471

HitENRREFERIRRE -
fTES®MI A
2016

20164
HK$'000 &% T 7T

3,648

ETEHENERHAQAFEENR -

M2016F 28290  E2EBHAENZEN
& FH4E{E 5B 1525,186,0007T (201545 : )

AEET Y EAENECEELEE 2T
TERER ZEANALTFEHPET

B 2R -

60,665
68,588
20,178
126,737

276,168

(6,199)

269,969
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24. GOLD LOANS

Secured gold loans EEHE — HiEH
Unsecured gold loans H2HE — &IKA
Contracted interest rate EHRI=E
Original maturity REIEA

The amounts represent borrowings from banks and the amounts payable are
pegged with gold prices.

As at 29 February 2016, the gold loans of HK$74,214,000 (2015:
HK$21,073,000) were secured by several pledged time deposits totaling
HK$54,238,000 (2015: HK$27,184,000) as disclosed in note 34(b) below.

Gold loans were borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuation of gold prices on
gold inventories. However, the criteria for hedge accounting were not fully met.
Gold loans were designated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss as they are managed and their performance are evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk management and investment
strategy, and information about the gold loans is provided on that basis to the
Group’s top management.

2. BEE2HE
2016
20164
HK$'000 &% T 7t
74,214 21,073
24,635 —
98,849 21,073
3.0%-5.2% 4.1% - 4.6%
within 1 year 6 months - 1 year
1R 6fE A - 15

ZRBEERTEE MENKEAHEESE
g o

MN2016%F2H298 » LM ELHEE P B
& 74,214,000 Jt (2015 £ : 3 # 21,073,000
JT) LR &£ B E R B ¥ 54,238,000 T
(20154 : B #£27,184,0007T) 2 & T EHF
RIEAER  FBERUT 2K :E34(b)F i

E‘go

BAESHENBENAREESER KD
HESFE2XE -AM AHELHESE
REZTEHFSUPSTERE ZFME - ER
ESHENRBEREAREERRERK
BENFPEEEEEERIMLRE  HEE
ERBAVEEIEBB2UBEE M
FHZEESHECEN I ZRE —EER
HIEEEzSEEEAS -



25.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Contractual
interest
rate (%)
BHFIE%)

Current bk ]
Bank overdrafts — secured RITEZ — BER

Bank loans and trade financing due ~~ BRIERSZEREB BT
for repayment within one year or EFRRESRE — BEA

on demand — secured 1.73% — 3.42%
Bank loans due for repayment within -~ BR1FREIEEZRIT

one year — unsecured BX— R 247% - 3.02%
Other loans — unsecured HIEH — SR 252%

2016
2016E

Maturity
B8R

20162018

2016
20162017

Certain of the bank loans above are classified as current liabilities due to the

inclusion of repayment on demand clauses in the bank facilities letters, without

which, the maturity terms of the loans are as follows:

2% FFERTREMER

HK$'000
BETR

572,701

29,388
8,836

610,925

On demand
4.75%—5.25% BRERGEE 4381
2.69% —3.19% 2015— 2016 564,259
717% 2015 12,7%

581,435

HRBITHENESREREEZGA
HETULERTERBELIEARDEE -

i
T

Repayment within one year or on demand  BR1FRZHHEESRIZREREE
Repayment in the second year AR2FREIHEE

Repayment in the third year

ARZR2FRZIMEER

BREREEZEZGR  ERNEHHRN

2016
201645
HK$'000 &% T 7T

604,954 551,116
5,826 30,319
145 —

610,925 581,435
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25.

26.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) 25.

Note:

Except for the bank loans denominated in RMB equivalent to HK$12,795,000 as at
28 February 2015, all bank borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the bank loans and trade
finance repayable on demand, are carried at amortized cost. None of the
portion of the bank loans due for repayment after one year which contains

a repayment on demand clause and is classified as current liabilities is
expected to be settled within one year. This evaluation was made considering:
the financial position of the Group at the date of approval of the financial
statements; the Group’s continuing compliance with the loan covenants; the
lack of events of default; and the fact that the Group has made all previously
scheduled repayments on time.

As at 29 February 2016, the Group had available banking facilities amounting
to HK$859,976,000 (2015: HK$738,015,000), of which HK$602,089,000
(2015: HK$581,435,000) had been utilized as bank borrowings as at the end
of the reporting period. Banking facilities amounting to HK$651,922,000
(2015: HK$643,078,000) are secured by certain assets of the Group as
disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS 26.

AR ES
BARES ERREEERDH

Convertible bonds

Interest payable classified as current
liabilities

ERBEBL

Non-current portion

On 20 April 2012, the Company issued to CDH King Limited (“CDH") five-year
term convertible bonds with a principal amount of HK$250,000,000 under which
CDH has the right to convert the bonds into ordinary shares of the Company
(the “Shares") at an initial conversion price at HK$6.40 per share (the
“Convertible Bonds") at any time during the conversion period, subject to anti-
dilutive adjustments. The Convertible Bonds are unsecured and subordinated
to all present and future non-equity linked indebtednesses of the Company.
Any equity-linked debt securities issued or to be issued are subordinated

to the Convertible Bonds unless the prior approval of CDH is obtained. The
net proceeds are intended to be used by the Company for general corporate
development and general working capital requirements.

HEBTREMERGE
Bt :

BLE201552H28H » UANRBBEEN ZIRITE
HHEREH12,795,0007T + BMIRITE LB
1EEE Y ©

AERITER(BEEEREEZRITER
REZRE) HIRBEKATIR o AR
RIFRINEELBSREREEKRAR
DEARBDEEZHORTERERIFR
AE - AFLFEREZEUT RE AEH
RAFHHBREER 2HHMRR ; A&H
FEETERGRR  REEQLEHN  £A&%
EREERERZER

M2016F2H298 - AEB B A ZR1T
£ & % A 7B 859,976,000 7T (2015 £ :
78 1£738,015,0007T ) H A 8 #£602,089,0007T
28R 1T B X (20154 : /& #£581,435,0007T)
REEPRECHH - ROTEEFRER
FH#5651,922, 0007T (20155 7 #5643 078,0007T)
BHASEEE TEEERALFEZERIBER
FRMIEE34 -

CE-3 S
2016
20164
HK$'000 8% F 7T
348,541 317,768
(12,500) (12,500)
336,041 305,268

A2012%F 4208 » & 8] # 1T FCDH
King Limited ((CDH]) X & £ %8 & B ¥
250,000,000t EFE# 2 A2 &% » CDH
EENEBHANERUETERESE
BERNQATNZBER(TEM])  EATER
BEAR - WS BREAETR BRI
(TTBBRES] - JRERESF2ERIFR
REBRITERERAGRA DT M IER-ERH
WEK  FACBTRRBT2EZEHN
BREEHFUREBRIUTRRES  KRIESE
ESCDHILE - R AT KIEFTBRIEBFHE
AR-—MEERRREBEESTE -



26.

27.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The Convertible Bonds bear interest at the rate of 5% per annum which are due
every year, and mature on the date falling on the fifth anniversary of the issue
date.

The Company shall redeem the outstanding principal of the Convertible Bonds
at the redemption amount representing an internal rate of return of 12% per
annum on the fifth anniversary of the issue date of the Convertible Bonds.

The fair value of the liability component was estimated at the issuance date
using an equivalent market interest rate for a similar bond without a conversion
option. The residual amount is assigned as the equity component and is
included in shareholders’ equity.

As at 29 February 2016, a total of 39,062,500 (2015: 39,062,500) ordinary

shares would have been allotted and issued if all the Convertible Bonds were
converted in full. There was no conversion during the year (2015: Nil).

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leases certain of its furniture, fixtures and equipment and motor
vehicles under finance leases which expire within five years (note 14).

The Group's finance lease payables are secured by the charge over the leased
assets.

26.

21.

AR E S (8

ARRESSF RN FRNRH50K N E
TENERFRE -

ARRARABRES 2 BT A HETE
SELUHENEF12%2AMEREZ SR
BoARRESNAELSE -

EEFONAFEEDERARKITRER
BERTEMNTERENES 2MBER X
RETE - RERF NI oA EE D - I
BERRREZS -

72016F2H29H » & 39,062,500 & i@
B% (20154 : 39,062,500 )8 & & IR ) #% ]
ARBRESNEEERM F RS R R

1T - AFEER L EEAREER (20155
) -

EARERE

AEEBRBNSFARY zREREHEBEK
W RERREBERAE(MEEL)

AEBEENREASEUHAAZHEEEE
FRERER -
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27. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (continued) 27, BEfmERESEE)
As at 29 February 2016, the total future minimum lease payments under finance H20165F2A298 ' IRIEEE[IREREZ
leases and their present values were as follows: BREENFRREBEZABENT :

Present value of

Minimum lease minimum lease

payments payments
RIEHEE
BRHEENRK NHRZBE
2016 2016
20165 201645
HK$'000 &% F 7t HK$'000 BT 7t
Amounts payable: e
Within one year 1R 1,664 2,605 1,632 2,464
In the second year 25 86 1,653 86 1,621
In the third to fifth years, HEIFEHELSF
inclusive (BREEREWE) 2 83 2 88
Total minimum finance RERERS
lease payments SR #E%8 1,752 4,346 1,720 4,173
Future finance charges KRR E (32) (173)
Total net finance lease EARERE
payables FEEMRE 1,720 4,173
Portion classified as PEARE
current liabilities &M H (1,632) (2,464)

Non-current portion IERENERD 88 1,709



28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Long service payments

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged to make
lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain circumstances to
certain employees who have completed at least five years of service with the
Group. The amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary and
years of service, and is reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s
retirement plan that are attributable to contributions made by the Group. The
Group does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations. The
long service payments are paid out from the Group’s cash on hand when such
payments are required.

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk, the risk of changes in the salary
increase rate and the expected return on MPF Scheme balances.

The actuarial valuation specifically designated for the Group’s employees was
completed by a qualified actuary, Towers Watson, as at 29 February 2016,

using the projected unit credit method.

The amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position are
as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligations SR EBFEHHERE

28.

BEERANEL
REBRBE

REEFB(EREAG)  MAKEEE TS
RTELEREASERBEEDSFHET
BT BANREFENFLAAZREET
XNRMBRES BNSHERETINER
FEANRBFHRAE  LHBRGMAELSE
BERAG I RERE P HAEEF L4
MEED cAEELBEEETMTEEUE
FEMESBNEREE - EFTEFHETR
ﬁ REBRBEIHAREZEFREX

2 et B e A R E B SRR E 2 K
BMEFEERNARRE AR -

HZEMN2016F28290  BAEEREEM
HNBEMECHAERBEMEBEEN
KAEFENERETEK ©
ERETBERAFEREANSELOT ¢
2016
20164
HK$'000 &% T 7T
17,863 21,571
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28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued) 8. BEBANEK(E)
Long service payments (continued) RERKES (&)
The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting period REEHRFTERAUATREERS

are as follows:

2016
20165
HK$'000 /8% Tt

Discount rate BRIR = 1.8% 1.7%
Expected rate of salary increases (%) FEHHEFHIE (%)
Year 2015 2015% - 5.0%
Year 2016 20164 4.0% 5.0%
Year 2017 and thereafter 2017 R A& 4.0% 5.0%
Expected annual return of the MPF FERRE S EEESFREE
scheme assets 4.0% 4.0%
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions at the end of the RBERRAEABLENECERBESN
reporting period is shown below: FIRINT :
2016 20165
Discount rate ARIR = 0.25% (702) 0.25% 740
Future salary increase RIRFE L 0.25% 636 0.25% (722)
Future expected rate of RE@IE S B ER
return on MPF balances KSR TEHA B U s 22 0.25% (2,568) 0.25% 2,829
2015 20156
Discount rate ARIR = 0.25% (975) 0.25% 1,035
Future salary increase RIRFEIZGM 0.25% 551 0.25% (622)

Future expected rate of RIRBE S EIER
return on MPF balances FFRTE HA [ i 2= 0.25% (3,407) 0.25% 3,513



28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)
Long service payments (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method

that extrapolates the impact on employee benefit obligations as a result

of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the

reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in a significant
assumption, keeping all other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis
may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligations
as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one
another.

The total expenses recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
respect of the plan are as follows:

Current service cost N E RIS AR
Interest cost FEER

Net benefit expenses FREFEE
Recognized in administrative expenses 2t ATTHER

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as
follows:

At beginning of year REL]D

Remeasurements: Bk

— Actuarial changes arising from — RERAEMELENEEED
experience adjustments

— Actuarial changes arising from — RRERREDMEENEESLS
changes in financial assumptions

Current service cost ANF EARIE ALA

Interest cost FEEA

Benefit paid E1ER

At end of year RER

28.

BERAEH ()
REBRBE (&)

TAPRESMIRBEERBERRER
BRELSESHHESR/ANEBNY
SIEHEE BBREIMIZENR-—REER
BRAERMEE  MEMEIRBRAETT
Zo-mRETHRRNSBRETERIEME
B9 - MUBURE D AT R 44 BE RBR SRE AR A
EBNERER 228 -

ﬁEﬁ#iJE(\‘?{FAi HmIRPHEANAE AW

\ .

2016
20165
HK$'000 &% T 7T
907 385
366 425
1,273 810
1,273 810

REBNEZBENREZEHUT

2016
20164
HK$'000 /&% F 7T

21,571 17,087

5,200 (4,269)

(9,801) 8,247

907 385

366 425

(380) (304)

17,863 21,571
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28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued) 8. EEBAE®(E)
Long service payments (continued) RER%E S (®)
The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair value of plan AERAEBRASEENATLEEZE
assets are as follows: BT :
2016 20165
Defined benefit RERFIZH
obligations 157 907 36 1213 (380) (9801) 5200 (4601) 1786
2015 20154

Defined benefit RERNZK

obligations 17,087 385 425 810 (304) 8,247 (4,269) 3918 2571



28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Long service payments (continued)

Expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years are as follows:

Within the next 12 months RARR121E B
Between 2 and 5 years R2ZESF 2 E
Between 5 and 10 years R5Z 105 2 [
Over 10 years HBiB10E

Total expected payments BIETHRIE

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group participates in the MPF Scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously
covered by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (HK$25,000 prior to June 2014).
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group also participates in defined contribution retirement benefit schemes

for all qualifying employees in the PRC, Japan and Malaysia. The assets of the

schemes are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of independent trustees.

The Group's total contributions to these schemes charged to profit or loss
during the year ended 29 February 2016 amounted to HK$9,556,000 (2015:
HK$9,711,000) (note 7) representing contributions payable by the Group to the

schemes at the appropriate rates set by the local government of its subsidiaries.

28 EEBANRLE(E)

RERBE ()
BEHARARNAERBANEZ 2ERAOT -

2016
20164
HK$'000 78T 7T

116 76

1,117 1,120

1,518 1,284

4,747 7,181

7,498 9,661

REMBKEKRGE

AEBZBEBCRHME AT EERM)
HETE  ARBETBUERBKEAEANE
ERZATEEEREBANEKR BN
BEE SHBESHE -BESTERE—
BEREERENRTE HBINIFTAE
BoRERESE EEXREEENE
RRES B A B H5%E 5T 2)/E H Atk -
L S A BB U A 7B 830,000t (20146
B2 A1 B8 %250005T) A LR o $ T2/
HERTIEN R -

AEBETRAETE BARSRAZES
ERNESSHEH—ERERFCRIKGE -
AENEEBYRNASENEELFNHE
BAUZRTABBRER -

NEZE2016F 2829 ILFE » AEEM
W& T &I AT E 2 {1 T 4R 5E A 78 %5 9,556,000
70 (20155 : /859,711,000t ) (FIEE7) » I
CHREEZHNR - LHADAER RS H
BAAEBEERFERNLRESY -
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29. DEFERRED TAX 29. EFERIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as FRELEREEEREEZHNT :
follows:

At 1 March 2014 R2014%E3A81H (1,526) (2819) (1139 (12,184) 24230 (9420) (885)
Deferred tax charged(credited) tothe ~ ERRNEZER/

statement of proft or loss (ftA) 2

during the year (note 11) BERE (M) 1614 (84) 203 (2,094 9781) (3083) (11,75)
Deferred tax credited to the statement ~ ERRZERARR

of comprehensive income STAZEBERE

during the year - (656) - - - - (656)
Exchange differences EiZE - - - - 52 - 5
At 28 February 2015 and 2015525288 %

1 March 2015 01553817 % (3559 (4306 (14278 14501 (12489) (206
Deferred tax chargedi(credited) tothe ~ ERREHRNR/

statement of profit or loss (GA) 2

during the year (note 11) BEHE (W) (2:108) (147) (89) (7,868) = (3309) (13,52)
Deferred tax charged to the statement ~ ERAZERARE

of comprehensive income pillivd 3140

during the year - 759 - - - - 759
Exchange differences ERZE 6 - 198 (239) (863) (50) (948)

At 29 February 2016 2016525298 (20 (294) (4796) (238) 13638 (15842 (34,346



29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Net deferred tax assets recognized EHRE BN RREERH
in the consolidated statement of EERIBE =T
financial position

Net deferred tax liabilities recognized in EHRE MBARRREERH
the consolidated statement of EEFIBEETHE
financial position

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group

is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of earnings generated from

1 January 2008.

At 29 February 2016, deferred tax has not been recognized for certain
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that are
subject to withholding taxes of the Group's subsidiaries established in the
PRC. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. At 29 February 2016,
the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries in the PRC for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognized totaled approximately HK$581,683,271 (2015: HK$537,840,000).

29. IRFERLIR (&)

2016

20164

HK$'000 ;& F 7T
(50,692) (37,430
16,346 16,793
(34,346) (20,637)

BEFBELERERE  RPBERILZH
ERECERNMNEREZSTREEAHK
10%FEB I Fr 8% o iR EH2008F1H1H
BN WEAN2007FE128318 %8 2 &
Fl e NP EEMNEREEFTEREERE
BRWIHE BN EABEWIENRE
BHRE -RAEBRPBERLZHE QT

= ERARZRAS% Bl AEBES
EFZER T B 2K B D 5 R 20085
1AIRREEZERAFDIR 2B EHTTE
METEHR -

MR2016F 28290 - HE T AEBR P E R
YHMBATRZADIREFMEENFE
BHUABRBELRE EERAE 25
MBARRITRERTRAEDIREZER
F o JA20165F 28298 » EEh E B A A
REBHENMABRAZELHEEENY
NEECHAEE RN A BNESS1,683,271T
(20154 : 78 #537,840,0007T) °
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29. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29. IEFERLIE ()

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the following items
at applicable tax rates:

Tax losses BIEEE
Others Hith
Deferred tax assets not recognized RERZBELERIEEE

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the above items as
in the opinion of the directors, it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the above items can be utilized.

The above unrecognized tax losses arising in Hong Kong and Macau as at 29
February 2016 of approximately HK$62,858,000 (2015: Hong Kong, Macau
and Malaysia of HK$50,847,000) are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

As at 28 February 2015, the above unrecognized tax losses arising in Japan of
approximately HK$8,606,000 would expire at a range of eight to ten years for
offsetting against future taxable profits.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends
by the Company to its shareholders.

THEB ZEERBREERAERARERYL
KT AR

2016
20164
HK$'000 84 F 7T
10,272 12,137
= 764
10,272 12,901

HARERHABT DG ERRRBF I E M
EHMBERFEREE HESRB/ALRALE
HERABELEREEE -

M2016FE2H298 L EABEBE
62,858,0007T (20155 : & » BFAKRER
7 58 78 550,847,000 RE B R B EE
ZAERBMIBER  WERPHAEREZ
EEAEBREBBEBATZARERHAR -

AR2015F 28280 L EASBE B
8,606,000 TN HAE4X 2 ABRBES
B BR8ZE10F R fE ML FA/EIK 85 R 2R FE
RBREBA o

N F] B H R ROk 3% 2 iR B3 S K PR 1S
Bt o



30. SHARE CAPITAL

31

Authorized: EE
1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,500,000,000/% = B2 &

HK$0.25 each B¥0.25 T 2 EBR
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRHE :
210,336,221 ordinary shares of 210,336,221 FREE

HK$0.25 each BHE0.25 T 2 B BT

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company'’s share option scheme was adopted by shareholders of the
Company on 26 November 2003 (“2003 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose
of the 2003 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to
participants thereunder for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the
Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group and any entity in which the Group holds any
equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company are
authorized, at their discretion, at any time following the date of the adoption

of the 2003 Share Option Scheme but before the tenth anniversary of that
date, to offer options to any person belonging to any of the following classes of
participants to subscribe for shares of the Company:

— any employee (whether full time or part time employee, including any

executive directors but not any non-executive director) of the Company,
any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

— any non-executive director (including independent non-executive directors)
of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

— any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

— any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

30. BRITRA
2016
20164
HK$'000 ;& F 7T
375,000 375,000
52,584 52,584

3. BREE

AAT 2 BREST ER2003F 118268 H
D E PR (2003 F BT E ) -
2003 F IR EFTEIMEMER TN E
ENBETHSEHEUAEENER R,
FAEELAEESUBEBRREESES
URAAEEFERENER(HEREER
BORMBEBEAT ©

RIBE2003F B RESE  ARFESER
BB ERERM2003F B IRETE 2 B E
BZERZETBEN2EARRE 0B
RTIMEMSEEEFNNATEZHTHR
BADARMDEIERAE -

— AQE - EEAHEATREMER
EERNEMES (TREZHAFRE
BES BEEANATESHERICREE
AEITES)

— AR EEAHREARREMER
BEENEMFRANTES(BEBIF
HITES)

— AEEEAREARAREMARKRES
BNEMNEMSRBEEES

— FEEIEARREEENEANERFS
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

— any person or entity that provides research, development or technological
support or other services to the Group or any Invested Entity; and

— any shareholder or any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or
any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value of the shares,
the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of the
grant and the average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of offer of the grant. An offer
of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted within 28 days from the
date of offer upon acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee together
with a remittance of HK$1. The maximum number of securities available for
issue under the 2003 Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the

issued capital of the Company. The maximum entitlement of each grantee

in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the ordinary shares in issue of the
Company. The option period will not be more than ten years from the date of
grant of the option and the Company’s board of directors may at its discretion
determine the minimum period for which the option has to be held or other
restriction before the exercise of the subscription right attaching thereon.

On 1 March 2013, 15,850,000 options were granted to the directors, employees
and service providers of the Company and its subsidiaries pursuant to the

2003 Share Option Scheme in respect of their contributions to the strategic
development of the Group. The exercise price of the options is HK$4.13 per
ordinary share of the Company (the “Share”), which is the highest of (i) the
closing price of HK$4.13 per Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotation sheet on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing price of
HK$4.08 per Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of HK$0.25 per Share on the date of grant.

31 BERESE(E)
— BAEEFHTARERESEIREH

EoHBRAEMEEREMRENE
MATREE &

— AEESEAHRREEENEARRE

FAEMHELR  HAEEEFAKE
DNAFEMRREERNEMS BT
HENFEA -

BRENTEEARONZEE  KROR
BREENRTFHEREBREGHINRD
BEERORBEZEBREZNRTAHAE
BEXAEBIMESHFHWRTE=
ERPNREHE ERTHBREL28R
AN EMABEITERNEZ ANEXNEE
BB R AEEA R T UWE - BRI IR AE
C A o RI52003F BB IR R8I AT X B
ZHEBBRERIR 2RODABE BSZTEE
BARXNBEBITRAEZ210% - BEEZ A
9 B8 B PR B A A+ =8 B AR R R A
DNACHITEBRMNIY - BRENENRE
HAERHBREZREHTSER+F -
KRB ESEINERESHEELETER
BREMMRBEALASABRENSE
HIRFEMPRAE o

ADTRIE2003F 2 BRETE > BiALQ
AREMBARZES - EERRISHE
BEHAEERKERNVER > M2013F3
A 18 @ H# H 15,850,000 1 i g £ LR
8%15,850,000 88 A& & B IR 17 © IR H B AR A2
ZITHEEAARLAABREBERBE413T
BB EEEELDUTEEZERES
E L (OROABEHANBEIMELEAR
BRATRKRTESREREA413T  RK
PREERHBHAIEERXS BB AT
HEABRERFRFHUTESRBE
4087 ; RRBEHARMEESRBE
0.257¢ °



31

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

As the fair value of the services received from service providers cannot be
estimated, the Group measured the value by reference to the fair value of share
options granted.

The 2003 Share Option Scheme expired on 25 November 2013.

The exercise price of the share options outstanding as at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

At 1 March 2014 2014538 1H
Lapsed during the year FRERM

At 28 February 2015 and 1 March 2015 R2015%2 828 A% 2015%F3A1H
Lapsed during the year FAD RN

At 29 February 2016 R20165F2H29R

During the year, 5,660,000 options lapsed due to resignation of certain
employees (2015: 400,000).

During the years ended 29 February 2016 and 28 February 2015, no share
option was granted. No share option expense was recognized for the year
ended 29 February 2016 (2015: HK$7,914,000) as a result of changes in
estimation of the number of share options expected to vest.

3. BRESTEGE)

BREYTETFHSEARRKRERER
RARELREWER -

B A B 4 4 IR A 2 A F B
EREGH  ARESERRUBBREZ
AT EEHE -

2003 F BB R EFTBIE M2013F 11 8258 f&
W o

RBEHRRERITENBRENTEED
T

413 15,260
413 (400)
413 14,860
413 (5,660)
4413 9,200

HRETEIRAFRABER - $5660,000
17 B8 IR FE B % % (20154 : 400,000) ©

2016528298 K2015%F 28288 FER
WER HERE - B E2016F2H290 -
HRGEHEENEREREERSE -
7N EE [ 0 M R SRR AR B X (20155F 1 B
7,914,0007T) °
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31 BRESTEGE)
The fair value and exercise periods of the share options outstanding at the end RBEPRERTENEREN D FEE
of the reporting period are as follows: RATFEBHMT ¢

1 September 2014 — 29 February 2020 2014598 1H-2020%F2H29H HK$1.62 1,380
FBHE$1.627T
1 March 2015 — 29 February 2020 2015538 1H-2020%F2H29H HK$1.62 1,380
FBHE$1.627T
1 March 2016 — 29 February 2020 20165381 H -2020F2H29H HK$1.62 2,760
FEHE$1.627T
1 March 2017 — 29 February 2020 2017%3H1H -2020F2H29H HK$1.61 3,680
FBHES1.617T
9,200
The fair value of equity-settled share options was estimated as at the date of BEEN D PEER R HEEER
grant using a Binomial Model, taking into account the terms and conditions XFtE  AEZEE :%i% HEBREZHRRE
upon which the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the RAF - TRIMTHAEREMAZHE -
model used:
Dividend yield (%) BEE (%) 3.4
Expected volatility (%) TEEIRE (%) 51.21
Risk-free interest rate (%) FREFIZE (%) 0.85
Expected life of options (years) FEETEREENE (F) 7
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) IREFEHRE (BRBE) 413
No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the measurement PR B 2 RS T A A FEE
of fair value. FTE o
The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the past 4 ﬂﬁﬂﬁf&ﬁ ?E&HH %*EH%?@ £4$/E:9 B b BRI
years and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. B RBERRABEEHROTEER - M
The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility 8 HA R g A 1Ei R RS IR R R REB R EIE
is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual BER KRB RBBRER -

outcome.



31

32,

33.

34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had
9,200,000 (2015: 14,860,000) share options outstanding under the 2003 Share
Option Scheme, which represented approximately 4.4% (2015: 7.1%) of the
Company'’s shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on pages 78 to 79 of the financial statements.

NOTE TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

During the year ended 28 February 2015, the Group entered into finance lease

arrangements in respect of items of property, plant and equipment with a total
capital value at the inception of the leases of HK$4,224,000 (note 14).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

(a) The Group entered into banking facility arrangements with two banks
pursuant to which certain fixed properties (i.e. land and buildings with

aggregate carrying value as at 29 February 2016 of HK$53,678,000 (2015:

HK$55,492,000)) in Hong Kong were mortgaged by way of a first legal
charge, as security for, inter alia, all obligations and liabilities, actual or
contingent, from time to time owing by the Group to the banks (note 14).

(b) As at 29 February 2016, time deposits of 2 subsidiaries in the PRC
denominated in RMB totaling equivalent to HK$54,238,000 (2015:
HK$27,184,000) have been pledged to secure several gold loan contracts
outstanding at the end of the reporting period (note 20).

(c) As at 29 February 2016, time deposits of 2 subsidiaries in the PRC
denominated in RMB totaling equivalent to HK$179,558,000 (2015:
HK$126,633,000) have been pledged to secure standby letters of credit
issued by banks to the banks of another 2 subsidiaries in Hong Kong for a
cross border treasury arrangement (note 20).

31

32.

33.

34.

B RS 8 (8D

A B 75 3R R A% BB - R QD 3 4R 5 2003
FHEBRETEREMmERTENERE
#9,200,00017 (2015%F : 14,860,000) » {4 <
NREZZACBITRM#4.4% (20155 :
7.1%) °

& &

AEEzFEEE FARUEFEZEH
%im%ﬁﬁ%%m&wEZ%éﬁéﬁ
A e

GEREREBRME

HZE2015F28280 ' AEBEFT LM ER
Sz EBEYE BERRERBELHR
W2 EARLEEBBEEA4224,0007T (M 5T
14) °

EEEN

(@ AEEHEBBERTITLRITEERE
ZH O BURZHE AEBUE—ZEE
HENARABETESENEENE
(N 20162829 B AR EE B
53,678,0007T 2 + it R 5 (20154 38
#£55,492,0007T) ) BRI - LLEAR (H
FERE)AEETEERNZEREITZ
FFEERISEEEREKZETER
(MftzE14)

(b) M20165F2H29R > MEEFEKKB
DANUARBIEAENRBEER B
54,238,0007t (20154 : & #£ 27,184,000
T2 EREREEETRREHRE
ReEeHEEHNZEER -

(c) M2016F2H298 MEEHEH
MBARAUARBEAENREE
A 78 % 179,558,000 7T (2015 £ : 8
126,633,000 t) 2 EH F R B 1F K
BLURBRITEHEERASEARTSR
IREEENB QTN ERBITIEE
B K282 A (KEE20) °

=

I
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS B REMFERH

As lessee

The Group leases a number of properties under operating lease arrangements.
Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years,

with options to renew the leases when all terms are renegotiated. Lease
payments are usually adjusted to reflect market rentals upon renegotiation of
the terms of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements have been subject to contingent rent by reference
to monthly turnover throughout the leasing periods. The minimum guaranteed
rental has been used to arrive at the commitments below.

As at 29 February 2016, the Group had total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancelable operating leases falling due as follows:

1R
E2FEEESF (BEERWMF)

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

36. COMMITMENTS

As at 29 February 2016, the Group had the capital commitments for leasehold
improvement as follows:

B4 - BRERE

Contracted but not provided for

36.

AEA
AEENEEHEZFHEERTYNE -
%%ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé“Tﬂi?%HﬂJ|?F E=F
UAREHEFEORAFREEY - &
iﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂuﬁﬁm%ﬁ

ETHEZHCZ2ZRNHEHNEAEX
BeREHRE - UT2AECSHRARER
HHEHEFHE -

72016 F2H29H » RIBET T HBEHNLEE
HEFHER  AEEZARKEEAENS
REEEMT -

2016
20164
HK$'000 /8% T T

166,351
191,735

163,387
273,719

358,086 437,106

A
AR2016F2H29H » NEBE B EYELE

BHEREENT :

2016
20164
HK$'000 8% T T




37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related parties
during the year ended 29 February 2016:

@

(iii)

(iv)

TSL M&D, a subsidiary of the Company, purchased raw materials
and finished goods from Rosy Blue Hong Kong Limited (“Rosy Blue
HK") amounting to HK$256,332,000 (2015: HK$245,878,000). At 29
February 2016, the amount due to Rosy Blue HK by TSL M&D was
HK$42,367,000 (2015: HK$51,737,000).

TSL M&D purchased raw materials and finished goods from Rosy Blue

Jewellery (HK) Ltd (“Rosy Blue J(HK)") amounting to HK$1,098,000
(2015: HK$4,778,000).

TSLGZ, a subsidiary of the Company, purchased raw materials and
finished goods from Guangzhou Rosy Blue Jewellery Co Ltd (“Rosy
Blue GZ") amounting to HK$39,647,000 (2015: HK$31,378,000). At
29 February 2016, the amount due to Rosy Blue GZ by TSLGZ was
HK$10,398,000 (2015: Nil).

EF, a subsidiary of the Company, sold raw materials to TSLGZ
through Rosy Blue (Shanghai) Diamond Company Limited (“Rosy
Blue SH"), an authorized diamond trading company in the PRC,
amounting to HK$263,330,000 (2015: HK$$154,497,000).

3. BEALRE

(@ BRERAEAFEREEMBHOFERZR
S0 REBRE E2016F2H29H 1
FEHBABEATETUTRS

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

AABET—HEKMBAT—HE
BEER 58 0 #tRosy Blue Hong
Kong Limited ([ Rosy Blue HK)
B A 188 M8 ¥ 256,332,000 7T
(20154 : 7 #5245,878,0007T ) B
MRR B GR  B2016F 2 A 29
B 3B R E R 5 8 E{fRosy
Blue HKHY 5X 18 A& /& %5 42,367,000
7t (20154 : & #51,737,0007T) ©

HmEBAEE KD HE ®Rosy
Blue Jewellery (HK) Limited
([Rosy Blue J(HK)]) 88 A # &
M 7% ¥ 1,098,000 st (2015 #F :
7B #54,778,000 7T ) YR AT B R BLRK

O
AR °

ARATET—BEKHEB LT — &
HEHENKEMNERRKEER
AERITEMERR]) BAHEER
7 539,647,000 Jt (2015 F : 8 ¥
31,378,000 jt) #9 B # B & B K
M o B B E N FE A E N EE R
K Fi 18 A 58 #510,398,000 7T (2015
F|)

AABET-—HBHBELAT—@EH
BRREBA-BHIEHEITELRES
NE—ERBR(EB)EBRERL
AIERR LB SHEBE
M H £ 4B E 7 7B %5 263,330,000 7T
(2015 £ : % 154,497,000 7T) HY
AR o
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3. MBALRS (E)

(@) (continued) (@) (&)

(v) (i) Mr. Tommy Tse, the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie (“Ms. Annie
Yau"), the Executive Director of the Company, has been employed
by a subsidiary of the Company as the Deputy Chief Executive Officer
— Supplies; (i) Mr. Tse Sui Luen (“Mr. Tse Senior”), the father
of Mr. Tommy Tse and father-in-law of Ms. Annie Yau, has been
employed by a subsidiary of the Company as the Founder. During
the year, remuneration of HK$1,338,000 (2015: HK$1,589,000) and
HK$1,544,000 (2015: HK$1,667,000) were paid to Mr. Tommy Tse
and Mr. Tse Senior respectively.

(vi) Notional charge of equity-settled share option expense of HK$588,000
(2015: HK$636,000) and HK$389,000 (2015: HK$420,000) were
accrued for share options granted to Mr. Tommy Tse and Mr. Tse
Senior respectively.

Rosy Blue HK, Rosy Blue J(HK), Rosy Blue GZ and Rosy Blue SH are
subsidiaries of Prime Investments S.A., a preference shareholder of
Partner Logistics Limited (“Partner Logistics”), whose board of directors is
controlled by Mr. Tommy Tse, the ultimate controlling party and substantial
shareholder of the Company. The transactions in respect of items (i) to

(iv) and (vi) were not continuing connected transactions under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the transactions were carried out on normal commercial terms and in the
ordinary course of business.

The related party transactions in respect of item (v) above constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Since the amounts in respect of item (v) are below de minimis
threshold for the purposes of Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules, it is fully
exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules.

v) (Vi ZBLTEFRALNTNET —
WEAREBETARTHAR —&
mEE HEBEEBARQITH
TESEMLBEL LT 2 FE 5 (i)H
HEBEEWAQTET —BEHREB
AABEARIBRA  SEEBLE
AHEBAECZRBRBEZEL
TZERF - RAEAFERD B X
132 g S £ B 51,338,000 7T (2015
1 811,589,000 ) & i & B
4 78 #51,544,000 7T (20155 : /B
1,667,0007T) KUEN & -

i) e EBEERB B TE
REBRECZCTIREBEZEZUR
BEECEREERS BB
588,000 Jt (2015 £ : 8 5 636,000
Jt) & 8 % 389,000 7T (20154 : &
#£420,0007T) °

Rosy Blue HK, Rosy Blue J(HK)
EMERRNERRE LB A
Prime Investments S.A. ( £ & Partner
Logistics Limited ([ Partner Logistics )
WEERRKRR) ZH B QA - Partner
Logistics T 5 & M i E 1§ £ 124
BARRAEBERALTURRERA
AEZERR o £ EEx)Z (iv)A(vi)E X
SRELHRAELAAZ L FER—E
BEBRERS - APREERA - Z
ERFEBREFBRPREEHEE

TRFRHEAT o

FMRBEVZEBEALIRZER LT
RAFBUAZFIAECHERERS
HREBEBEVNSEEBER ETHIE
1AA 76N RIRE 2K F  MZIBEEE
RERRME  FEFEZ RLMHA
ZIHBRE -
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 37. BEALTRS (E) 5
S
N — (2]
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: (o) "EEFEEEAEMS 3
2016 L
20165 °
HK$'000 8% F & 8
o
4
Short term employee benefits HHESRER 10,866 9,102
Equity-settled share option expense DREEE ZBREER 268 2,738
Post-employment benefits EREEF 59 34
Total compensation paid to key TRFEEERAEN
management personnel B&48%E 11,193 11,874
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 to the EEME—PTHFBRNUBRRW
financial statements. 39
38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 3B REFHSEzEMTIA
157
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at RBEEHR SENZSRMITAEKABN
the end of the reporting period are as follows: T
Financial assets HBEE
2016
20164
HK$'000 ¥+ 7T
Trade receivables FEURBRTX 254,642 217,256
Financial assets included in prepayments, B&EREMNR « BE
deposits and other receivables REMEWRR K EE 96,936 77,006
Time deposits TE BT 253,320 158,247
Cash and cash equivalents BERBELEEY 202,549 130,062

807,447 582,571
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 38 RENSEZSBMIAE)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at RBEHR SEIzZERIAREABAN
the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued) T : (&)
Financial liabilities =R
2016 2016
Financial
liabilities at fair Financial
value through liabilities at
profit or loss amortized cost Total
BAVEE RIS TR
S EREZ ABRZ B35
HBEE affE e
HK$'000 8% F 7t HK$'000 ;8% F 7t HK$'000 8% F 7t
Trade payables FEFERFR = 271,633 271,633
Financial liabilities included in BEEEMEMNRK
other payables and accruals FESTERzHKEaE = 156,878 156,878
Derivative financial instruments fTESRTI A 3,648 — 3,648
Gold loans E2HE 98,849 — 98,849
Interest-bearing bank and STRRITREMER
other borrowings — 610,925 610,925
Convertible bonds AR ES - 348,541 348,541
Finance lease payables EAmERE = 1,720 1,720

102,497 1,389,697 1,492,194



38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at

the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued)

Financial liabilities

2015

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals

Gold loans

Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings

Convertible bonds
Finance lease payables

FESBRFR

BEEEMEAR
REHE R MEEE

HLHE
sTERITREMER

AR ES
EAmERE

38 REANSEZzZSEMIAGE)
RBERAR > SEAZ2M T AREED

21,073

T : ()
bR T

2015

258,460

187,402

581,435
317,768
4,173

1,349,238

258,460

187,402
21,073

581,435
317,768
4,173

1,370,311
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 9. EMIAZAFEERAFEESHR
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments, other BRETHREESEMEAFLEEEEZH
than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, BIAN AEENGEIAZKRAERE
are as follows: HAFEEWT

2016 2016
20165 201645
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
Financial liabilities MEasE
Derivative financial fTE€mIT A
instruments 3,648 — 3,648 —
Gold loans =HeHE 98,849 21,073 98,849 21,073
Interest-bearing bank and s ESRITREMMER
other borrowings 610,925 581,435 610,925 581,435
Convertible bonds AR ES 348,541 317,768 375,884 346,990
Finance lease payables EAmERE 1,720 4173 1,720 4,173

1,063,683 924,449 1,091,026 953,671



S
i’
B
&
=
8
FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 9. EMIAZATFEERAFEEERE) E
]
(2]
Fair value hierarchy: AREBEBEER: 5
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the TREJNAEENSHMI A2 A FEET i
Group's financial instruments: 24 £
o
Liabilities measured at fair value: BAFEETEZEE £
4
As at 29 February 2016 7201652 A29R

Fair value measurement using

RS2 AT RET S
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
SERMISRE ERABREE BEREBRYIE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(#&%BI1) (A& B1I2) (A& BI3) e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 161
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Financial liabilities g 3=t
Derivative financial fTESRMIA
instruments — 3,648 — 3,648
Gold loans ESHE 98,849 — — 98,849
98,849 3,648 — 102,497
As at 28 February 2015 7201552828 H

MEEaE
=LHE

Financial liabilities

Gold loans

21,073

21,073
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 9. EMIAZAFEERATFEESER(E)
Fair value hierarchy: (continued) AFEEEER (&)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: BAFEEKEEZER
As at 29 February 2016 2016528298
Fair value measurement using
AT EEFEDE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
SER™ IS RE EAAHBHE - EAHUBRHE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(#&511) (#%B12) (#%313) aH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BEET T BT T
Financial liabilities HMEaE
Interest-bearing bank and & EIR{TREABER
other borrowings — — 610,925 610,925
Convertible bonds AR ES — — 375,884 375,884
Finance lease payables EAmERE — - 1,720 1,720
— — 988,529 988,529
As at 28 February 2015 201552 528 H
Financial liabilities L 3R
Interest-bearing bank and ~ stESR{TREMER
other borrowings — — 581,435 581,435
Convertible bonds AR ES — — 346,990 346,990
Finance lease payables EAREHEE — — 4173 4173

= = 932,598 932,598



39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between
Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial
assets and financial liabilities (2015: Nil).

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
time deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables and financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due
to short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the Chief Financial Officer is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for their fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance department reports directly
to the Chief Financial Officer. At the end of each reporting period, the finance
team analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the Chief Financial Officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount
at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods
and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The Group’s own non-performance risk for non-current portion of finance
lease payables as at 29 February 2016 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair value of the liability portion of the convertible bonds is estimated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using an equivalent market interest
rate for a similar convertible bond with consideration of the Group’s own non-
performance risk. The fair values of derivative financial instruments and gold
loans are based on open market prices of gold.

9. SEMIAZAFEERAFEESHR(E)

FRAVERAFLEEFEZHEEERR
BlARF B2z EFAE - K& ARE HE
3(2015%F : #&) o

ERECHERERRESEEY TN
R BWERAR - BARX  BE2ERY
FoRERAMBEWR ZUBEENES
EHMENRRESFERAZ2MEREZQ
FEEEHRAERES  TEARZET
BERREHREE -

F 7 £ B A PR B A A B % OR Y B S B B
AEEESRIANQAFEEFEZRE
MiEF MBEBEEOEFEUEAER
B-EBAREHPR  BBEEBEIMEH
TENEBEEZHNEBEEAERANIER
B - MEREEFENBRE 2 FHMMALE

MBEEREBZAFEE RTHBEY
BRHE DURFTEENENRS P&
TAARBZEBAR - At A FEEE
ERTUTHERMBR :

AEBEMN2016F 28298 AENBEHRE
HERBBOEE2TBEYNRRKTEE
FER -THRBRESFNEGERMO2AFE
BENRAEERETHEANENER TR
B FREEIAEENTENRRE
NEEHEFARRERELE - TEER
TERELHEZAFEENRERKT
BrERERE -
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NOTES TO THE
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 40 BBEBEEEERBE

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, bank overdrafts, convertible bonds, finance lease payables,
gold loans, derivative financial instruments, time deposits and cash and cash
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate
risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and commodity price risk. The
board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarized below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s long term debt obligations with a floating interest rate.

The following sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that change
in interest rates had occurred at the year end date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rates for financial instruments in existence at that date. A
1% increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended 29 February 2016 and
the retained profits as of 29 February 2016 would decrease/increase by
HK$5,123,000 (2015: decrease/increase by HK$4,054,000). This is mainly
attributed to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate
borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures mainly arising from sales

and purchases by operating units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily US$. The Group
does not hold or issue any derivative financial instruments for trading purposes
or to hedge against fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. The Group mitigates
this risk by conducting the sales and purchases transactions in the same
currency, whenever possible.

In the opinion of the directors, US$ is reasonably stable under the Linked
Exchange Rate System with HK$ and accordingly, the Company does not have
any significant foreign exchange risk.

AEEZTESRMTIAEEABRITRE
ER RITEX - TRRES  EYR
EHE B22HE -TEESRIA -EH
FREAESRESSEY UEERMTA
ZEBRABRDNAAEB2XBEEES -
AEEEETHMYBEERERE  WE
BERAHEBELE 2 BUIRRREMIRK -

EMIBEFEE2TERABARNERER
SERR - FERR RBEREBESE
mERRAE ESSEHLRZT XHAH
MEREHELEREZBER -

RS

AEBHNUZHANZRFE2RBEHK 2
MRS mMEAZTEINEAR -

BT Z2HBREDMIBRMNEEBREL
ABEMEE YSRANRZACHFEN
MBEIAMEHAEEAR EFAXEE
BAERAB2ZHRAEERE  HATEF
RBINY T HRIE 2 BRKR - DERERA=
ZEENEZBFHNETMG -

WA=, TH®RIE - MATE bR
BETE KEEHZE2016F28290 1L F
EZ2BAKR2016F28298 2 REBEF]
#4180 #E 5,123,000 7T (20154 3R
A B HNERE A 054,0007T) © tTAEERA
AEERETIEAEFEY 2 AREE -

SMEE [ B

AEEZXGIEREBEEREELEMN
UEDEERE U ERETCEER - 8
HpEBcERITERET - AEELE
BERBTEMITEERMTIA  UHFESR
ARREPEZRB AR - AEEBEBE
AREBATUR -—EBETEERZRE
It B o

EBRR ERNBINBBERFET -
ENAEENEE Bt AORELRE
ERHIMERR



40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises from granting credit to
customers in the ordinary course of operations. The Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk on recognized financial assets is limited to their carrying
amount at the end of the reporting period.

In order to minimize the credit risk, the management of the Group reviews the
recoverability of receivables individually and collectively periodically and at

the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment loss is
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the management of the Group
considers that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. The Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.

The credit risks for cash and cash equivalents of the Group and the Company
are also regarded as immaterial as they are deposited with major banks and
other financial institutions located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The Group does not hold other material collateral over the financial assets.
None of the financial assets of the Company are secured by collateral or other
credit enhancements. The credit policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been effective in limiting the
Group's exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade payables,
convertible bonds and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, and also

in respect of its cash flow management. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements, its compliance with lending covenants and its
relationship with its banks to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

40.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 40. BHERAKEREBERBEE(E)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBELERE)
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the RIEBRKR > REBZETHERTER
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as B EZHBEEZEHBERNT ¢
follows:
On demand
or less than
1 year 1to 2 years 2to 5 years Total
BREREER
1FUT 1225 2255 k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Trade payables FEfTERR 271,633 - - 271,633
Financial liabilities included in ~ B&EE MK
other payables and accruals ~ EFTERZBEEE 156,878 - - 156,878
Derivative financial fTESBMIA
instruments 3,648 — — 3,648
Gold loans EEHE 100,699 - - 100,699
Convertible bonds AHERES 12,500 390,243 - 402,743
Interest-bearing bank and STEMRITREMER
other borrowings 605,419 5,948 146 611,513
Finance lease payables ENmERE 1,664 86 2 1,752
1,152,441 396,277 148 1,548,866

Trade payables FEfTBRRR 258,460 — — 258,460
Financial liabilities included in B &EE AN TR

other payables and accruals ~ EFTEAZEBKERE 187,402 - — 187,402
Gold loans H5eHE 21,265 — — 21,265
Convertible bonds ARRES 12,500 12,500 390,243 415,243
Interest-bearing bank and FTESRITREMER

other borrowings 552,803 30,788 — 583,591
Finance lease payables EAmMEEE 2,605 1,653 88 4,346

1,035,035 44,941 390,331 1,470,307



40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 29 February 2016, the Group's term loan with on demand clause in the
amount of HK$604,954,000 (2015: HK$551,116,000) was repayable within one
year in accordance with the terms of the loan. The loan agreement contained a
repayment on demand clause giving the bank the unconditional right to call in
the loan at any time and therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile,
the total amount was classified as “on demand”.

Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors do not believe that these bank
loans will be called in its entirety within 12 months, and they consider that these
borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the maturity dates as set out in the
loan agreements. This evaluation was made considering: the financial position
of the Group at the date of approval of the financial statements; the Group’s
compliance with the loan covenants; the lack of events of default, and the fact
that the Group has made all previously scheduled repayments on time.

Commodity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sales of jewellery including gold products. The
gold market is influenced by global as well as regional supply and demand
conditions. A significant decline in prices of gold could adversely affect the
Group's financial performance. In order to reduce the gold price risk, the Group
uses gold forward and gold loan contracts to reduce its exposure to fluctuations
in gold prices on gold inventory. The gold price exposures are monitored by
management.

For the gold forward and gold loan contracts, assuming that the amount
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year, a 10% increase/decrease in market prices of gold at 29 February

2016 would have decreased/increased the Group's profit before tax by
HK$12,768,000 (2015: HK$2,107,000). The sensitivity to the market prices

of gold used is considered reasonable, with all other variables held constant.
This information has not taken into account potential financial impact on other
financial statement line items.

40.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 420. BHEERBEEBERBEE)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Group has been imposed with several capital requirements from
banks and under convertible bonds on the Group’s equity to total assets ratio,
net gearing ratio and consolidated tangible net worth. As of 29 February 2016

and 28 February 2015, the Group has complied with these capital requirements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 29 February 2016 and 28 February 2015.

The Group monitors capital using net gearing ratio, which is total borrowings
less cash and cash equivalents and time deposits divided by total equity of the
Group. Total borrowings include gold loans, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, convertible bonds and finance lease payables. The Group’s policy
is to maintain the net gearing ratio not greater than 80%. The net gearing ratios
as at the end of the years were as follows:

Total equity T EaEE

Total borrowings less cash and HAEERRERRSEEY
cash equivalents and time deposits REHER

Debt to equity ratio FEELR

BEXER

REBEAEE T ERRAREBELAEH
FERKEEB oD THFRBRREZEXR
bR UXHFHEBRRBNRR ZEE -

AEEEBEHEARER  UREBELERR
EHREHEEECRBRESEHEEEFELSA
B AESHAREAREE  AEET A
PREORRRNGZRE - BEEAFTRE
RNEITHE - ANEEBNERRTHAESR
EMEFEARE  BEAEEZESY
BEELLR BEUERRGEEEREES
B ~ R2016F2H29H Kk 201524281 -
AEEFEREELRRTE - KRB E2016F
2H29H K2015F2A28B LLEE » EAE
EMERZ BERIAFREHEEL -

AEENAFEBLREREAR AL
ENAEERR SR ASEEYREY
ER BRUEZAE -SLEEEEESHE
B HERTREMER TARESR
EBIRMERE AKEZBERD#E#EFFE
§§$$%%m%o%ﬁ%%$§ﬁﬁw
RN -

2016
20165
HK$'000 &% T 7T

1,030,678 1,094,308

604,166
59%

636,140
58%



41.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Interests in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments and deposits
Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
Convertible bonds

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Convertible bonds
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Issued capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(a) Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

FRBEE
Y2 - BE KR A
ML Rl

REEE
BENRRES
A E IR
REeERREEEY

REEE
HARET R FEH B A
AR ES

REEEFE
HEERRBAE

FRBEE
AHRRES
IEAERH A

BEFE
i
BRITRA
bt
AR

41, BBERRBR
(a) AATWEBMRTIBERBEH RN
T

2016
20164
HK$'000 8% T T

595
1,232,012

1,232,607

448

272
720

(2,208)
(12,500)

(14,798)
(14,078)
1,218,529

(336,041)
(48)

(336,089)
882,440

(52,584)
(829,856)

(882,440)

1,050
1,256,840

1,257,890

272
255
233

760

(2,150)
(12,500)

(14,650)
(13,890)
1,244,000

(305,268)
(133)

(305,401)
938,599

(52,584)
(886,015)

(938,599)

Notes to the Financial Statements 817§3R#& /M 3E

169




NOTES TO THE
AINANCIAL STATEMENTS s mmmamee o

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued) 41, B | & (E)
(b) ARFZHEEREWT :

(b) A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows:

At 1 March 2014 #2014E381A 123,365 9,255 147110 8,600 12,858 474 943572
Total comprehensive loss KEERERAER

for the year - - - - (48,223) - (48223)
Dividends paid during the year REREIRRE - - - - (2524) (14724) (17.48)
Proposed final 2014/15 HR2014/15RBRE

dividend (note 12) (Hfz¥12) - - - - (178 178 =
Equity-setled share option NREEENERER S

arrangement — 7914 — - - — 7914
At 28 February 2015 and W2015525 280 %

1 March 2015 2015%3A1A 123,365 17,169 14770 8,600 714,329 1782 886,015
Total comprehensive loss REEREUAEE

for the year - - - - (45,222) - (45,222)
Dividends paid during the year RERERRE - - - - (3,155) (1782) (10937)
Proposed final 2015/16 HTR2015/16RBRE

dividend (note 12) (Kizt12) = - = = (5469 5469 -
At 29 February 2016 20165229 123,365 17,169 14770 8,600 660,483 5469 829,856



41.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of shares at

a price in excess of their par value per share.

(i) Capital reserves include the difference between the aggregate nominal
value of the share capital of the subsidiaries and their combined

net assets acquired pursuant to the group reorganization and
restructuring.

Capital reserves also include the statutory reserve, which was

appropriated from the profit after taxation of the Group’s PRC

subsidiaries under the applicable laws and regulations in the PRC.

(iii) The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the
fair value of the shares of the Group's subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to a group reorganization over the nominal amount of the Company’s
ordinary shares issued in exchange therefor, less the set-off of the
accumulated losses of the Company amounting to HK$865,747,000 as

at 29 February 2004 pursuant to a capital reorganization.

(iv) Exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange

differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

(v) Equity component of convertible bonds represents the unexercised
equity component of the Convertible Bonds issued by the Group
recognized in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for

Convertible Bonds in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

(vi) Share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the
financial statements. The amount will be transferred either to the
share premium account when the related options are exercised, or to
retained profits should the related options expire or be forfeited.

42. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the board

of directors on 23 May 2016.
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FIVE-YEAR
SINANCIAL SUNVIVARY zenses

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests AEERBEIEMBEFECXEREE &8
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited ERIFZERREERD @ HEEC A M2 EEX
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This HRBREEEN EHSE(WERH) > &5

summary is not part of the audited financial statements. MT - WEMBELEBEREELTBEREN —
BhAD ©
RESULTS K&
2016
20165
HK$'000
BT T
TURNOVER EER 3,538,862 3,871,029 4,057,271 3,562,819 3,359,063
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREL AT Z R 46,306 62,930 101,349 94,952 242,245
Income tax expense FrisHiE A (22,493) (23,331) (27,023) (26,964) (55,873)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REZER 23,813 39,599 74,326 67,988 186,372
Attributable to: LB AT
Owners of the Company ARTREEA 23,623 39,758 74,529 68,137 167,723
Non-controlling interests FEER IR R S 190 (159) (203) (149) 18,649

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 23,813 39,599 74,326 67,988 186,372



ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS EE -BERFERBRERERE

2016

Five-Year Financial Summary H& 8 §E

20164

HK$'000

BT T
Property, plant and equipment W - BENRE 139,441 144,947 137,927 131,233 137,932
Intangible assets BEERE 99 99 99 99 —
Other asset HihgE 500 500 500 500 500
Prepayments and deposits ERRERE 43,379 43,326 46,238 29,551 23,126
Time deposits EHFR 71,429 = = — —
Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE 50,692 37,430 34,908 26,874 21,036
Current assets RENEE 2,369,757 2,387,343 2,330,451 2,032,476 1,912,498
2,675,297 2,613,645 2,550,123 2,220,733 2,095,092

173
Current liabilities REAE (1,267,625) (1,167,797) (1,152,434) (935,258) (1,110,186)
Other payables and accruals HitE R ETEH (6,656) (6,199) (5,207) — —
Convertible bonds AR ES (336,041) (305,268) (278,389) (254,831) —
Finance lease payables EAREHEE (89) (1,709) (586) (2,338) (2,552)
Employee benefit obligations EERAEL (17,863) (21,571) (17,087) (15,186) (19,727)
Deferred tax liabilities BEREEE (16,346) (16,793) (26,050) (24,427) (24,380)
Net assets BEETE 1,030,678 1,094,308 1,070,370 988,693 938,247
Issued capital ERTIRA (52,584) (52,584) (52,584) (52,584) (52,584)
Reserves (1] (978,219) (1,042,175) (1,018,086) (936,210) (885,663)
Equity attributable to owners of AARHEBA

the Company FEfE RS 4A%E (1,030,803) (1,094,759) (1,070,670) (988,794) (938,247)
Non-controlling interests IR IR R R 125 451 300 101 —

Total equity Yk (1,030,678) (1,094,308) (1,070,370) (988,693) (938,247)




SUMMARY OF

PROPERT

:S MRE=E

Location

b B

Private Car Parking Space
Nos. 43-50 and 73, Basement, and

Gross
floor area
(Square Feet)

EEEM
(FHR)

Lorry Car Parking Space Nos. 1-4, 6, 11 and 14, 1st Floor

Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Summit Building, 30 Man Yue Street,

N/A

EBNEAMRME0REETITAE
435055 R 73R AR EAE K
— 11455 » 69% ~ 11X 1498 S EIREN

Units A1-A7, B, space in Main Entrance
Storeroom No. 3 and 5, Ground Floor;

Units A1-A2, B and C, 1st Floor;
Unit E-H, 2nd Floor, and
Units A—K and Flat Roof, 3rd Floor

2 Summit Building, 30 Man Yue Street, 91,455

Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong

EBNEAMRAEHIFEETHAE

i RAL-A7EE( ~ BEE{Y » RIRERMD

' SRSHBYE

—18A1-A2E{ - BRCE{L ; —#E-HEMK

—EBA-KENKRFEA

Units A & B, 1st Floor, Shui Ki Industrial Building,

No. 18, Wong Chuk Hang Road,
Aberdeen, Hong Kong

10,716

EREBFERMNBISRETRAE —1RAZBEN

Unit A1 on Level 1 and 2, Block 2,
4 Heng Chang Garden, Beijing, PRC

1,654

FELERTEEEE2E—ZE ZEA1EN

Flat 01, 23rd Floor, Block F, Beijing Rome Garden,

Cao Hui Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing, PRC

1,735

TERILRTHEEESRESEEFE- T =81%E

Percentage
interest in Category of
property tenure

MEERLEE  FHNIR

100% M
100% M
100% L
100% L
100% L

Usage

Jiik=



L: Long term lease
M: Medium term lease
C: Carpark

I: Industrial unit

R: Residential

N/A: Not applicable

The Group’s properties were stated at cost less depreciation in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the value of HK$53,678,000 as at 29 February
2016 (2015: HK$55,492,000) as set out on page 128 of the annual report. The
properties were revalued individually at the end of the reporting period by Ascent
Partners Valuation Service Limited, an independent professionally qualified valuer,
at an aggregate market value of HK$525,590,000 (2015: HK$498,311,000). “Market
value” is intended to mean "“the estimated amount for which an asset or liability
should exchange on the valuation date between a willing buyer and a willing seller in
an arm’s-length transaction after proper marketing and where the parties had each
acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion”.

L: REIEA
M : REIR A
C: SHEAL

I ITXMEMN
R: TEHA
N/A:D  FEMA

R2016F 28290 » NEB MY EZRK AR
ENFEINRGETBRRABRRNFELBYE
53,678,000 7t (2015 % : & 555,492,000 7T) °
HBEHRAERFIE - WERBFSHR
MNEATSEELHBYUEXSERMGAEMY
AFEZAEBRATVE—ETELALEBES
#& 525,590,000 JT (2015 & : 7 £ 498,311,000
) o [MmBEEEIREIA—BEEdSERE B
FHESFTEERE AF LREETHERE -
WHEEAHEHNE BERTIEEANER
T REEARBZEFTEEE]-

Summary of Properties )52
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TSE SUI LUEN JEWELLERY (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
AR E (B BRAF
(REREAMRLBRLTF)

© Copyright Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited. All rights reserved.

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted, in any form or by any means, electronic,
mechanical, photocopying, recording, or otherwise, without the prior written permission of TSL.
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